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“On behalf of the Board of Directors, I am pleased to present

eMudhra’s Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements for

the Financial Year 2020-21”

Mr. V Srinivasan

Chairman eMudhra
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Chairman’s Message

As we reflect on the past year, it’s evident that it has been a rather unique period that has had 
a tremendous impact on the way society exists and how we interact with one another. COVID 
has brought to the forefront, the importance of establishing ‘trust’ in a presence-less transac-
�on ecosystem. We see organiza�ons today readily adop�ng digital transforma�on tech-
nologies, especially those aimed at fulfilling the fundamental need to power transac�ons that 
keep the society and economy moving forward. With human safety at the forefront, lock-
downs and curfews have necessitated the rapid adop�on of trust-driven digital transforma�on 
technologies. Needless to say, the past year, has necessitated a fundamental shi� in how we 
interact, and more importantly, transact with one another.

As much as the adop�on of technologies around digital iden��es and eSignatures are 

primarily powered by the need to ensure service availability today, organiza�ons are star�ng 
to realize the compe��ve edge offered by such solu�ons in terms of opera�onal efficiency, 
customer experience, and commercial benefit. This will be a key driver in the coming era as 
more organiza�ons adopt such technologies to remain compe��ve, rather than for reasons 
associated with COVID alone. 

COVID has no doubt been challenging for every organiza�on, including eMudhra. Between the 
rampant spread of COVID ini�ally, the subsequent spread of Delta variant, and the conse-
quences of the virus on our personal and professional lives, quite a lot of us have undergone 
trying and emo�onal �mes that we would not have predicted a few years ago. Nonetheless, 
we have come together as a team, family, and organiza�on to cope up with all the surprises 
and challenges and s�ll maintain strong financial growth in the past year.

We have grown in terms of our geographical reach, client base, employee base, product 
sophis�ca�on and channel engagement. But what makes me most proud, is that all of this 
numerical growth indicates that each of us has grown in our character, resilience, and commit-
ment to one another and towards our dream, which has come together to strengthen organi-
za�onal resilience against something grave, impac�ul, and unpredictable as COVID. 

It’s extraordinary how the solu�on and service por�olio we have built over the past decade, is 
helping many organiza�ons in India and abroad survive this pandemic and offer essen�al 
services to ci�zens and consumers alike. From Public Key Infrastructure and Trust Ser-
vices to Iden�ty Management and Signing solu�ons, every aspect of what we offer is 
fundamental to func�oning in the COVID and post-COVID era.  The depth we have built in each 
of these domains, paired with strong domain exper�se and effec�ve reach, has helped us 
hedge the ‘Covid Risk’ and more importantly, put us on the forefront of a rapid growth journey 
as Digital Society evolves quicker than ever.
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As an organiza�on, despite our role in helping others adapt to COVID, we have also evolved 
tremendously to keep up with the circumstances. Our ability to move quickly was very evident at 
the outset of COVID. Within a very short �meframe, we were able to transform our opera�onal 
model to support a fully remote workforce. While this may sound easy, it requires tremendous 
coordina�on and IT enablement to ensure secure access, network availability, monitor-
ing, and other such factors. From a client perspec�ve, the IT team was able to ensure that there 
were no cri�cal issues and down�me to any of our public services, which impact thousands of 
downstream organiza�ons and millions of individuals. 

From an Enterprise Delivery perspec�ve, employee safety and travel restric�ons were without a 
doubt envisaged to be significant impediments to managing project deliveries. However, the 
team quickly transformed its processes and models to enable full remote delivery and support, 
even for very large and cri�cal projects & clients. Considering the range of our products, and the 
fact that we now operate across 5 con�nents, in mul�ple languages, and mul�ple �me 
zones, this transforma�on is achieved on the back of tremendous planning, dedica�on, and hard 
work. 

It is also interes�ng to see that COVID has to some extent, relaxed geographic boundaries around 
business development processes. Even with virtual-only interac�ons, our sales teams were able 
to more than adequately engage with prospects and clients to ensure targets were met. In fact, 
during COVID, we were s�ll able to grow our India business, significantly expand our MEA busi-
ness por�olio which now covers almost all regions within the geography, and get noteworthy 
entries in Europe, La�n America, and Far East markets that would serve as strong refer-
ences in the region. 

From a product standpoint, emSigner has been recognized in the latest Gartner Market Guide for 
eSignatures as a ‘Global Full Service Enterprise Electronic and Digital Signature’ solu-
�on. emSigner has been adopted in the past year by some of the largest banks in the Middle East, 
or for that ma�er, several noteworthy en��es in La�n America, Far East, and other regions. The 
product has also been ver�calized for Banking and Financial Services thus enabling further pene-
tra�on into this large industry. emCA has had strong growth not just in India, but also across mul�-
ple regions for varied use cases, whether it is to power a public TSP in countries like Malaysia and 
Peru, or to power smart meter and electric vehicle ini�a�ves in Europe. Further, emCA is also 
on the verge of EAL4+ cer�fica�on which would enhance the solu�on’s credibility 
across the globe. emAS is now used by an increasing number of organiza�ons in India for 
sophis�cated and complex large-scale use cases around Iden�ty and Access Management. 

At a more strategic level, we have also evolved our offerings significantly in the context of increas-
ing cloud adop�on across the globe. We have enhanced our offerings in Global Trust Services 
(SSL/TLS, etc.) and completed our Root Program journey, built emPower Cloud Reseller Plat-
form to bundle our cloud-based offerings, strengthened our managed and cloud PKI architecture 
and por�olio, and significantly enhanced emSigner to accommodate mul�ple data residency 
zones, be�er privacy and data ownership models, sophis�cated repor�ng func�onali�es, and 
other such cri�cal changes that will aid our global expansion. 
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We have expanded our presence in La�n America with a local team in Bogota, Colombia. We have 
now, also set up eMudhra in Indonesia to focus on local business opportuni�es extensively. Our 
Inside Sales team has grown and effec�vely contributed a healthy lead pipeline to our various geog-
raphies. In the past year, we have also cons�tuted a separate Enterprise Channel Management team 
supported by a formal Partner Program to manage our 400+ partners who resell our Global Trust 

Services and Enterprise applica�on por�olio.

In summary, COVID has not curbed our hunger for growth and our passion for what we do. The past 
year has made us strong on all fronts. We have grown as a team, we have grown in our geographical 
reach and client engagement, we have grown in our product range and depth, and most importantly, 
we have grown in our resolve to be a leading global player in the Digital Transforma�on space. To 

me, this is s�ll the beginning of our journey together and I look forward to working with all of you as 
we take eMudhra to new heights in the coming era. 

Stay safe. Stay healthy.
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V. Srinivasan

Yours Sincerely, 

Bangalore, May 21, 2021 



Global Recogni�ons 

With a market share of 11%, eMudhra is 
ranked  No. 1 amongst 42 vendors

 in India under the Iden�ty and
Digital Trust Category.   

eMudhra is listed among 

top 5 vendors in IDC’s 2020 India Security 
So�ware Market report under Iden�ty and 

Digital Trust category and is ranked 
#1 in Iden�ty Management for the year. 

IDC Semiannual So�ware Tracker (1H 2020)

India Security So�ware Market, 2020

emSigner by eMudhra is listed as a “Representa-
�ve Vendor in Electronic Signature,” under the 

Primary Category, ‘Global, Full-Service Enterprise 
Electronic and 

Digital Signature Pla�orm.’ 

Gartner 2020 Market Guide for Electronic Signature

Gartner’s Research Titled,
“Manage the Cri�cal Risks of Using Electronic Signature”

eMudhra is men�oned as a Sample Vendor in 
June 2020 Gartner Research �tled ‘Manage 

the Cri�cal Risks of Using
 Electronic Signature.’

eMudhra is iden�fied as a representa�ve vendor 
in the field of ‘User Authen�ca�on.’

 This is the second �me eMudhra
 is men�oned in the report.  

Gartner’s Market Guide for User Authen�ca�on, June 2020

Other Awards and Recogni�ons

Winner, Insurance
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A Decade worth of Experience

07

2021

2016

Launch of emSigner Banking version

Expansion in APAC – Jakarta, Indonesia; 
La�n America – Bogota, Colombia; 
Europe – Amsterdam, Netherlands; 
North America – Florida
Launch of emPower – Cloud Reseller 
Portal for SSL, Cer�ficates and emSigner 
sales
Became Board Member of the European 
Cloud Signature Consor�um 
IDC ranks eMudhra #1 in Digital Iden�ty 
and Trust in India
Gartner recognizes eMudhra as a 
“Global, Full Service, Enterprise” vendor 
in the eSignature Market Guide

2019 

2018 
Expansion in GCC market through 
office based in Dubai
Comple�on of WebTrust Cer�fica�on 
and launch of emSign CA

First eSign Service Provider in India
eMudhra became Chairperson of 
India PKI Forum
eMudhra launched its Paperless 
Office solu�on - emSigner

2015 

Channel Partner expansion to 8000 
partners across all states, 5 lakh 
cer�ficates issued
Adop�on and implementa�on of 
Digital Signatures across eGovern-
ance pla�orms (MCA, DGFT and 
Income Tax)

2010 

2020

Cer�fying Authority License from CCA, 
Ministry of IT, Govt of India

2008 

Became Chairman of Asia PKI Consor�um
Launch of emAS IAM – Iden�ty and 
Access Management 
GSP License from Govt of India for GST 
verifica�on and eInvoicing

 

eMudhra launched its Cer�ficate 
Lifecycle Management solu�on - emCA
eMudhra’s Enterprise business spanned 
several large clients including top banks 
in the country

Enterprise Division launched with 
emAS – Authen�ca�on server for 
Digital Signatures

2012 



 Digital Signature
Consumers

Channel
Partners

 Enterprises

Employees

Users 
Authen�cated 

Vision
To con�nually be at the forefront of 

iden�ty governance and data security and 
drive significant change in the society 
through secure digital transforma�on.

Mission 
To accelerate the world’s transi�on

to a secure integrated

digital society. 

600+

654

10
  Million 

87K 

50
 Million
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Iden�ty enforcement has been at the core of business 
transac�ons since the �me mankind started trade and
commerce

Iden�ty was established with 
rudimentary techniques such 
as  seals, stamps and manu-
scripts for cross verifica�on at 
the �me of trade

As the global popula�on was 
thin and infrastructure was at 

a nascent stage, lack of 
iden�ty enforcement led to 
conflicts

However, it was this period in 
history when mankind started 
to do business on famous 

trade routes in Asia and the 

Mediterranean peninsula

Medieval Era

Industrial 
Revolu�on

Digital Age

This period marked the 

beginning of global legal 

ins�tu�ons to enforce the 
concept of contract and 

obliga�on in modern �mes

Iden�ty enforcement 
became cri�cal for business 
transac�ons and ink based 
iden�ty assurance gained 
global acceptance in trade 

and commerce

Industrial revolu�on also set 
the stage for crea�on of 
future na�on states, govern-
ments, global ins�tu�ons 
and created a truly mul�po-
lar world with dis�nct 
iden��es

With dras�c changes in the 
concept of iden�ty, the 
world is yet again forced to 
evolve and adapt. Revolu-
�on in the field of technolo-
gy has augmented global 
trade like never before

As iden�ty is increasingly 
becoming digital in nature, 
so comes the challenge of 

iden�ty assurance and its 
legal enforcement in 

business transac�ons

Ins�tu�onal complexi�es, 
behavioral changes in the 

society and overall demo-
graphics is evolving and 

Digital Transforma�on is the 
norm of the day and age

There are certain pivotal periods in history which are especially significant in terms of the evolu�on of iden�ty and
its applica�ons globally

 400 to 1500  1700 to 1900 2000s

Years of Evolu�on
eMudhra's role in enabling trust in Digital Iden�ty ecosystems will be a significant edge in enabling strong 

growth in the Digital era
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The Fundamentals of our Unified Ecosystem for 
Digital Trust 

Establish the Concept

of Iden�ty 
Enforce Iden�ty

Verifica�on 
Legally bind 

Corporate Ac�ons

Iden�ty in digital age means much more than the fact of being who or what a person or thing is. Today it is 
about people you know, who work for you, who you do business with, and they could be living in different 
parts of the world. Today the concept of iden�ty includes various web assets that can expose your image and 
brand to the public at large. In the context of business, iden�ty refers to all the devices through which your 
employees, stakeholders, vendors and customers communicate and engage in the nexus of contracts which 
forms a business en�ty.

We believe that an all-encompassing Digital Transforma�on in business involves crea�ng a robust security 
umbrella over digital iden��es by deploying technology applica�ons to achieve three core aspects for any 
successful business transac�on.

We at eMudhra are fully convinced of the need for largescale adop�on of PKI technology and Digital Work-
flow Pla�orms to help build a new founda�on on which we can drive secure Digital Transforma�on in the 
industry.
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With cloud adop�on on the rise and connected devices in billions, 
iden�ty security becomes cri�cal for a sustainable future. If you 
look around, we are surrounded by devices on which we commu-
nicate, do business on, or use to simply connect with the wider 
world. How do we ensure our iden�ty and data is never compro-
mised in the World Wide Web or even private networks? 

Come 2025, the world may lose $10.5 trillion to cybercrime 
annually!

Cyber threats are evolving. Computers, networks, and smart-
phones are not the obvious targets anymore. People, cars, 
railways, planes, power grids and anything with a heartbeat or 
an electronic pulse on the network is vulnerable. It is es�mated 
that businesses across the globe will have to brace against 

ransomware a�acks with one a�empt every 22 seconds in the 
year 2021 alone.* 

The idea here is not to set panic but mi�gate cybercrime with 
cu�ng-edge technology. Change begins in the boardrooms and 
we are determined to bring about a culture of cybersecurity 
awareness in the top-down corporate structure globally. In this 
day and age of digi�za�on, value of a business will largely 
depend on data security and the level of cybersecurity strength 
and cyber resilience. 

We at eMudhra believe it is paramount to deploy latest technol-
ogy to mi�gate iden�ty fraud in the context of iden�ty evolu-
�on. Cyber-a�acks, phishing campaigns, malware, and ransom-
ware and so on, the list is long and believe it or not, the solu�on 
may not be as complex as perceived. We at eMudhra firmly 
believe that promo�ng a cultural shi� with a water�ght techno-
logical solu�on can offer op�mum returns on security invest-
ment for humanity at large. 

Unlocking Value for the Society

Did

You

 Know?
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Cybersecurity
Paperless

Transforma�on Iden�ty and 
Digital Trust

Automa�on

Digital solu�ons to meet every emerging trend and succeed

IoT

Solu�on Por�olio

 Cybersecurity

Digital Transforma�on

Iden�ty and Digital Trust
emAS IAM – Iden�ty and Access Management 
Solu�on

emAS MFA – Mul�-factor Authen�ca�on

emSigner – AI Enabled eSignature Workflow

eSign Services for Remote Signing 

PKI
emCA – Cer�ficate Lifecycle Management

Managed/Cloud PKI

Trust Services

Individual/Organiza�on Cer�ficates 

SSL/TLS Cer�ficates

Code Signing Cer�ficates 

Email Encryp�on Cer�ficates 

Document Signing Cer�ficates

AI
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CA
Certificate Lifecycle

Management

AI enabled eSignature
Workflow

AS
Identity Governance and

Secure Access

Trust Services



eMudhra is the first 
Cer�fica�on 

Authority to get 
license from the 

Controller of 
Cer�fica�on 

Authori�es (CCA), 
Mauri�us to operate 

and issue digital 
signature cer�ficates 

to ci�zens of 
Mauri�us.

Building a Global 

Trust Services Ecosystem

Security Trust

Global 

Exposure

eMudhra is one of the few trust service providers capa-
ble of offering a wide range of digital services under 

country specific accredita�ons. 

eMudhra is a cer�fied 
Cross Cer�fica�on 
Service Provider 

under the Telecom-
munica�ons 

Regulatory Authority 
(TRA) of the UAE and 

is authorized to 
provide electronic 

signatures and Digital 
Signature Cer�ficates 

in the country.

eMudhra is in the 
process of becoming a 

Licensed Electronic 
Cer�fica�on Service 

Provider (E-CSP) under 
the Communica�ons 

Authority of Kenya (CA) 
authorized to issue 

digital signatures that 
are compliant with the 
Kenya Informa�on and 
Communica�ons Act, 

1998.

eMudhra powers a local 
TSP, So� & Net 

Solu�ons, through its 
globally accredited 

emSign root of trust. 
Further, eMudhra's 

emSigner is also 
accredited by Indecopi 
allowing eMudhra to 
offer an end-to-end 

paperless transforma-
�on value proposi�on to 

clients in Peru. 

Global Client Base

eMudhra is a licensed 
Cer�fying Authority 

under the Ministry of 
Informa�on Technol-
ogy, India that has a 

track record of issuing 
50+ million digital 
cer�ficates across 

India. The company 
also holds the 

dis�nc�on of being 
the first eSign service 

provider in the 
country.

India

UAE

Kenya Peru

Mauri�us 

The US

eMudhra is in the 
process of receiving 

SAFE Iden�ty 
accredita�on for 

emSigner. This will 
allow the company 

to cater to the 
digital iden�ty and 
signature require-
ments of US and 

global Pharmaceu�-
cal Market.
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Our Strategic Objectives 

Providing a Founda�on to Enable Digital Adop�on
The race for providing be�er digital experience is well underway. Those 
businesses winning (and retaining) customers today are those offering s�mu-
la�ng, fric�onless, and overall consistent digital experiences.

eMudhra is at the forefront of helping companies create such a winning 

digital experience. By integra�ng a range of digital technologies into their 
opera�ons, we are focusing on helping businesses create new customer 
experiences, simplify work, change culture, and meet changing business and 
market requirements with utmost ease. 

One of the biggest value proposi�ons of eMudhra is the comprehensive range 
of digital enablement solu�ons that we offer. From PKI to Signing Applica�on 
to Iden�ty Solu�on & Trust Services, eMudhra offers the en�re value chain 
necessary for end-to-end digital adop�on. Leveraging this unique value chain, 
companies can incorporate full-scale, full service digital programs right now, 
with capabili�es required to quickly a�ract and capture consumer loyalty. 

Suppor�ng Secure IoT Revolu�on
IoT is becoming an increasingly relevant domain to our society as mul�ple 
industries are adap�ng to IoT enabled ecosystems to power smarter and 
more efficient offerings to their respec�ve client base. However, as we rely 
more on devices for cri�cal data, downstream automa�on, and more, the 
ability to trust the data and point of origin of the data becomes ever more 
important. 

At eMudhra, we focus on helping to bridge the ‘Trust’ element that IoT 
ecosystems almost always require. We work on solu�ons that help iden�fy 
and trust data through Public Key Infrastructure. We further understand that 
clients have varying needs in context of solu�on architecture, commercial 
models, etc. Hence, we are con�nually evolving our PKI por�olio to support 
cloud and on-prem PKI models with the ability to support a wide range of 
commercial needs. More importantly, our solu�on is built to support tremen-
dous scalability that is o�en required in IoT ecosystems. This has certainly 
helped drive trac�on and engagement towards interes�ng use cases in 
automo�ve and energy sectors amongst others.   

Driving Behavioral Change in Banking

The latest developments have significantly altered customer behavior in 
banking. Unlike previously, they have started demanding for seamless digital 
experiences at every touch point. And mee�ng this expecta�on can be the 
difference between success and failure. 

eMudhra is focused on helping financial service providers move fast and meet 
the demands of customers in the digital era. Leveraging a suite of end-to-end 
digital solu�ons, we are concentra�ng on driving customer centric digi�za-
�on to enable presence-less and paperless banking on top of which banks can 
embrace automa�on at various levels. 
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Global Presence

33

15

eMudhra Inc.
97 Cedar Grove Lane, 
Suite 202, Somerset
New Jersey 08873.

Phone: +1   732 678 0110   

US

eMudhra

Level 3&4, Wisma Suria,
Jalan Teknokrat 6,
Cyber 5,CyberJaya,
Malaysia - 63000.

Phone: +60 (0)  3831 43285

Malaysia 
eMudhra Limited

No.56, 3rd Floor, Sai Arcade,
Outer Ring Road, 

Devarabeesanahalli,
Bangalore - 560103.

Phone: +91 80 4615 6902

India
eMudhra DMCC

3006 One Lake Plaza, 
Cluster T, JLT, Dubai,

UAE. P.O. 32620.

Phone: +971 4 578 7155

UAE

eMudhra Pte Ltd.
3 Raffles Place, 

#09-02 Bharat Building,
Singapore - 048617

Singapore

    PT eMudhra Technologies,
Ruko Pondasi, 

Jln Pondasi Raya No. 21 Unit H, 
Kayu Pu�h, Kec. Pulogadung, 

East Jakarta, DKI Jakarta, Indonesia
Phone: 021 4701928

Indonesia 
eMudhra B.V.

WTC, The Hague,
 Netherlands

 

Phone: +971 5 2929 6000

Netherlands

eMudhra Limited
10, Frère Felix De Valois St,

Port Louis, 
Mauri�us - 744101

Phone: +230 2139 846

Mauri�us 

APAC
India|Indonesia|

Malaysia|Singapore

Africa
Port Louis,
Mauri�us

Middle East
Dubai,

 United Arab Emirates 

Americas
New Jersey,

United States of America 

(USA) 

Europe
The Hague, 
Netherlands



Global Partners 

And many others

West Bengal Electronics Industry

Development Corporation Limited

A Government of West Bengal undertaking
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Global Clients

And many others

QPSC-

Qatar armed forces
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Key Associa�ons

Chair of Asia PKI Consortium 

Sponsored by Controller of Certifying Authorities,

Ministry of InformationTechnology, Govt. of India

Membership

Associa�ons

At eMudhra, we partner 

and associate with indus-

try-leading organiza�ons 
that share a joint mission 

of providing compliant 

solu�ons to our esteemed 
clients.  

Technology 
Associa�ons

Business

Associa�ons
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 Market  Speaks

Over the last year, we have helped nearly every organiza�onal segment that tried to improve business 
con�nuity by ensuring produc�vity and employee safety.  As a result, all our customers, for instance, 
have significantly experienced the benefits of eradica�ng the inefficiencies of manual, paper-based 
processes.  We are happy to know that our products and services have helped clients retain opera�onal 
efficiency and remotely conduct business during these trying �mes. Below are a few client tes�monials 
that prove our technical ingenuity and relentless service in overcoming business disrup�ons.

Kalpesh Shah, Digital Risk Officer , CISO, 
Cyber security & 

Digital Risk Management – CIPLA

“Customer is a king and we all have to 

understand their business objec�ves and 
pain points to provide the best solu�on 
instead of selling the product alone. We 

team up with eMudhra to reach out to our 

customers to solve their pain points. Our 

synergy with eMudhra to understand the 

customer pain points makes our rela�on-

ship different, unique. We both look for 
customer delight instead of just 

conver�ng the lead.” 

“We, Trusted solu�ons are very glad to 
work with 'eMudhra'. We availed a 

spectacular service and the best in class 
support from you. Appreciate your 

crea�ve approach and dynamic 
troubleshoo�ng skills with no compro-

mise in the quality of your products. The 
way you maintain rela�ons and priori�ze 
a�en�on to detail reflects your values. 

We are happily looking forward to 

growing our business along with your 
partnership.”

Chithra Jayakumar, Business 

Development Manager 

-Trusted Solutions

“eMudhra has been instrumental in 
aiding our digitaliza�on journey during 
the pandemic. This has enabled us to 

create, modify, maintain, archive, 

retrieve, and transmit all endorsed and 

compliant electronic records with 

verifiable electronic signatures while 
suppor�ng our resilient and agile 

opera�onal architecture."

Amit Bhargava, Founder

- Concat Business Consulting Pvt. Ltd.

“As part of our Company's Digi�za�on 
Journey & Smart Dubai Ini�a�ve, we 

are in the process of moving away from 

paper by 2021. emSigner comes with a 
unique feature to create workflows 

that have helped us automate 

processes and acquire faster approvals 
from management using digital 

signatures. It has also helped us reduce 
prin�ng costs. Overall it’s convenient 

and easy to use."

Yousif Marhoon, Head of Information Technology
– dans
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Client Case Features

Avia�on

Since its incep�on, our client has immensely contributed to the 
phenomenal growth of avia�on sector in Dubai, as well as the 
UAE. With a grand vision of transforming the sky, they are ensur-
ing safety, capacity and efficiency of air naviga�on services 
through cu�ng-edge technology solu�ons and exper�se. Our 
client provides air naviga�on services at mul�ple airports in the 
UAE. 

They wanted a paperless solu�on to automate more than 100 
processes to augment safety and capacity of air-naviga�on opera-
�ons at all the airports under their purview. They also wanted a 
digital workflow pla�orm to help accelerate their efforts to 
comply with Dubai Paperless Strategy 2021 and achieve 50% 
digital transforma�on on this front by the end of year 2020. 

emSigner enabled our client to digi�ze 100s of workflows with 
digital signatures, reduced man hours by digitally processing flight 
manifests and improved flight readiness �me by 80%. With 
emSigner, operators were able to sign documents in bulk with 
workflows designed to allow signing in both parallel and serial. 
emSigner also removed any chance of data or iden�ty related 
breach by enabling Mul�-factor Authen�ca�on (MFA) based 
sign-in for the large number of people working in the facility. With 
emSigner, our client was able to seamlessly comply with Dubai 
paperless strategy 2021 and significantly augment their opera-
�ons. 
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Informa�on 
Technology

Our client is a mul�na�onal informa�on technology (IT) services 
and consul�ng company. It is the biggest IT Company in India and 
is now placed among the most valuable IT services brands world-
wide.  

Our client was looking for an end-to-end solu�on to digi�ze the 
en�re process of filling, signing, storing and managing the I-9 
forms, used for both employment eligibility and iden�ty verifica-
�on in the US. eMudhra devised a two-step process to help 
achieve this objec�ve. In the first step, emCA was deployed to 
setup an enterprise CA for issuance, download and registra�on of 
US eSign Act compliant electronic signatures. To ensure utmost 
security and legality in the process, hardware security module 
(HSM) was deployed to store digital keys and �mestamping was 
used to provide reliable �me source for electronic signatures. In 
the second step, eMudhra provided an electronic signature 
enabled digital workflow pla�orm to streamline and automate 
the en�re workflow for managing, signing and storing of the I-9 
forms. 

Using eMudhra’s proprietary PKI solu�on, our client was able to 
digi�ze internal processes, enforce legality with electronic signa-
tures and comply with the USCIS norms for processing I-9 forms in 
the US. 
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Banking

Our client is one of the largest banks in the United Arab Emirates. 
It was founded in the late 1960s. Today they provide a vast range 
of conven�onal and Islamic personal banking services including 
deposits, loans and credit cards; conven�onal and Islamic invest-
ment banking service for corporate finance and investment advi-
sory on mergers and acquisi�ons, ini�al in public offering and 
underwri�ng; conven�onal and Islamic asset management 
services for wealth management amongst other things. Our client 
operates overseas offices globally, including Europe, the United 
States, Asia and Africa.

They wanted a banking workflow pla�orm supported by digital 
signatures to transform their en�re banking opera�ons. emSigner 
helped create a paperless banking experience for their customers 
and provided a technology solu�on for in-house employees to 
collaborate be�er with automated workflows for all the customer 
facing and internal opera�ons. emSigner also enabled our client to 
integrate with UAE PASS Na�onal Digital Iden�ty for qualified 
digital signature issuance. 

emSigner helped augment the processing �me with digi�zed 
banking documents and seamlessly integrated with exis�ng 
systems in use across various departments in the Bank.
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Our client is a mul�na�onal pharmaceu�cal company and a 
global market leader in developing medicines for a vast range of 
condi�ons including cardiovascular diseases, respiratory illness-
es, arthri�s, diabetes, weight control and many more. They are 
one of the first pharmaceu�cal companies globally to offer gener-
ic drugs for AIDS and other life threatening diseases. Headquar-
tered in Mumbai, our client also supplies ac�ve pharmaceu�cal 
ingredients to other manufacturers in the pharmaceu�cal sector 
and personal care products.

They wanted to deploy a zero trust model at scale to establish 
authen�city and non-repudia�on of documents being generated 
and shared within the organiza�on and outside. emSigner 
enabled them to leverage Digital Signatures to meet all the com-
pliance requirements and standardize document management 
globally. 

Swi� on-prem deployment of emSigner ensured our client’s 
opera�ons were digitally transformed with short �me to market 
and they were well prepared to stay ahead of compe��on during 
the pandemic, without any down�me in opera�ons. emSigner 
helped bridge the gap between business, technology and all 
other perceived digital risks and this was achieved with excellent 
Return on Security Investment (ROSI) for the company. 

Pharma
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Quality Accredita�ons and 
Cer�fica�ons

Quality is an integral part 
of everything we do at 
eMudhra. To ensure that 

we are maintaining high 

standards in our product 

offerings and correspond-
ing implementa�ons and 
deployments, we have 
measured ourselves 

against leading global 

quality standards and 
successfully a�ained 
these quality cer�fica-
�ons. We employ a 
quality management team 
within eMudhra that 

constantly assesses our 
processes, project perfor-
mance, resource u�liza-
�on, and DevOps process 
to evaluate how we can 

upgrade ourselves and 

what we do so as to serve 

our customers in a be�er 
manner.

eMudhra is appraised as CMMI Maturity Level 5. The highest CMMI Maturity 
Level signifies that our organiza�on is focused on con�nuous improvement 
and is built to pivot and respond to opportuni�es as well as changes. CMMI 
Level 5 appraisal is a standing tes�mony to our high standard of performance 
in terms of crucial so�ware engineering parameters such as produc�vity, 
quality and risk management.

9001:2015
20000-1:2011
27001:2013
27018:2014

eMudhra is an ISO 9001, ISO 20000, ISO 27001 and ISO 27018 cer�fied 
organiza�on. ISO cer�fica�ons prove an organiza�on’s capabili�es and 
processes to ensure high level of accuracy, adequate security standards, and 
quality management across the en�re organiza�on.

eMudhra currently operates under the Indian CCA Root of Trust in issuing 
end user cer�ficates, whether SSL or Digital Signature cer�ficates. However, 
to expand this offering to global markets, it is a requirement to be trusted 
by Global Trust Stores for which, compliance with WebTrust standards is a 
mandatory requirement. eMudhra is WebTrust Accredited.

Data Protec�on and Privacy are important pillars towards enabling trust in a 
digital society. With increasing concerns around ownership and presence of 
data, it’s important that the applica�ons of today’s world are built to 
manage data protec�on regula�ons globally. eMudhra’s solu�ons are GDPR 
compliant to enable worry-free adop�on.

UNDER EVALUATION

EAL 4+ Cer�fica�on becomes relevant in showcasing the quality of Cer�fying 
Authority (PKI) solu�ons and the processes and technologies used within by 
ensuring it adheres to globally accepted standards. EAL 4+ cer�fica�on, 
which is currently under process will be primarily relevant to eMudhra’s 
emCA Solu�on suite to enable global acceptance.

eMudhra has received the SOC 2 Type II cer�fica�on. The cer�fica�on issued 
by AICPA, the world’s largest member associa�on represen�ng the 
accoun�ng profession, affirms that eMudhra is compliant with the principles 
of security, availability, processing integrity, confiden�ality and privacy, and 
has proper internal controls and processes in place to protect client data. 

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, commonly 
known as HIPAA, is a series of regulatory standards that outline the lawful 
use and disclosure of protected health informa�on.

eMudhra is compliant with all aspects of HIPAA. We ensure that all require-
ments related to health informa�on are followed comprehensively and 
ensure that Personal Health Informa�on (PHI) of pa�ents’ is handled with 
utmost care. You can place your full trust in our foolproof security measures 
and rest easy, knowing that your organiza�on’s security is safe in our hands.

eMudhra is currently in the process of receiving SAFE Iden�ty cer�fica�on. 
Issued by SAFE Iden�ty, a US based industry consor�um and cer�fica�on 
body opera�ng a Trust Framework for digital iden��es in healthcare, this 
cer�fica�on will provide assurance to the healthcare community that the 
digital iden��es issued by eMudhra can be trusted across the healthcare 
ecosystem.
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eMudhra is a place where one can work passionately and dare to dream big. It's an organiza�on, 
where you can plan your long innings of growth. What I enjoy the most is dis�nct work culture 
based on constant learning, though�ul execu�on, collabora�on, humility and leadership. 
Moreover, eMudhra is like an extended family and every colleague who is a member of this family 
shares a sort of camaraderie and bond that is unique in itself.

Vishwesh S

Nancy Yamile Ramírez Garcés
eMudhra has a transparent culture. Every employee, irrespec�ve of their posi�on is given a chance to be heard, and there are ample 
opportuni�es available to those who want to build a career here. A�er joining the company, I have seen myself transform as a 
professional in more than one ways. eMudhra and its Management places great trust on its employees and this allows you to feel part 
of a team despite the distance.

eMudhra has offered me great opportuni�es to bring my concepts and ideas through 
an environment that truly emphasizes teamwork. We have the opportunity to make 
our own decisions, while each and every one of us is not only encouraged to improve 
our performance but at the same �me we help our co-workers to deliver be�er results 
as well.

The work environment in eMudhra is enriching, team members are great and it feels 
more like a second home.  I've had the opportunity to work with some great 
mentors who have always been mo�va�ng and suppor�ve. The ample opportuni�es 
provided to me have helped me not only grow technologically but also become a 
true professional. The young brigade here is exuberant and highly talented. 
eMudhra is definitely one of the best places to set foot into for a posi�ve career 
start.

It has been great working at eMudhra. eMudhra has a posi�ve vibe to work in and the 
work culture has always been encouraging and mo�va�ng. I appreciate our 
company's insights and culture. I feel I am growing with the company. Employees get 
to learn a lot of new things which mo�vates to work in such a challenging environ-
ment in this dynamic world. I also appreciate my team for being suppor�ve at all 
�mes.

Employees 
Speak

Jose Fernando Torres 

Norhashimi bin Sharifu

Darshana R

At eMudhra, team work and skills are encouraged and highly valued. Opportuni�es 
for growth, recogni�on and the posi�ve culture of trust, collabora�on and 
innova�on ensures success for eMudhra as a global provider of AI and Digital 
Transforma�on solu�ons.

Rajesh Raman
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The latest developments have significantly altered customer behavior in 
banking. Unlike previously, they have started demanding for seamless digital 
experiences at every touch point. And mee�ng this expecta�on can be the 
difference between success and failure. 

eMudhra is focused on helping financial service providers move fast and meet 
the demands of customers in the digital era. Leveraging a suite of end-to-end 
digital solu�ons, we are concentra�ng on driving customer centric digi�za-
�on to enable presence-less and paperless banking on top of which banks can 
embrace automa�on at various levels. 

Introducing 
eMudhra Digital Campus

eMudhra’s Digital Campus is conceptualized by 
Mr. Pierre Elouard, an architect who hails from 
France. Pierre is a pioneer in environmental-
ly-friendly construc�on methodologies that 
combine state-of-the-art French architecture and 
has also worked on monumental structures such 

as Auroville in Tamil Nadu.

The campus building has various systems installed 

to make it resource-efficient and environment 

friendly such as -  rainwater collection, efficient 

waste disposal systems, and a 103.62 KW solar 

power generation system to facilitate the efficient 

consumption of electricity.

The Digital Campus is located in a serene

environment close to the Bangalore International 

Airport. It shares its boundaries with prominent 
organizations such as Just Dial, CIPET, Brigade 
Group, Amazon Warehouse, BCCI, and Tech 
Mahindra to name a few.

The building has 2 floors of dedicated underground 
parking for 200 cars and 10 floors of office space, 
adding more than 0.2 million (2 Lakhs) square feet 
in total. It hosts an open structure with water 
bodies and aqua streams placed aesthe�cally in the 
building. Every floor has a green garden concept to 
ensure occupant health and employee produc�vity.
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CSR at eMudhra

Crea�ng Next Gen Digital Iden�ty
Experts

Our Promise

As part of our CSR ini�a�ve to educate aspiring techies 
about the changing Digital landscape and its applica-

�ons across industry ver�cals, experts from eMudhra 
conducted training session for 110 MCA students from 
Surana College. A training session was conducted on 

“Secure So�ware Development Cycle” for digital 
security. 

Students were made aware about the importance of 
securing Digital Iden�ty and how technology can help 
mi�gate digital iden�ty based cyber-security risks in 
the industry and society at large. It was great to see 
the overwhelming par�cipa�on of students and their 
sense of enthusiasm to explore the field of Digital 
transforma�on and Iden�ty Security.

eMudhra’s CSR ini�a�ves reflect our commitment 
towards building a community conscious, socially-re-

sponsible and value-driven organiza�on that invests for 
the larger good of the society we live in. With our CSR 

ini�a�ves in the field of educa�on and skill based 
training, we wish to make a meaningful impact in the 

society and give equal opportuni�es to deserving 
individuals. 
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Consolidated Financials

Particulars

Total Revenue

March 31, 2018

 76.85 

21.97

Profit after Tax 7.90

EBITDA

March 31, 2019

101.12

31.67

16.89

Revenue & Employee Growth
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 No. of  Employees

2020-212017-18 2018-19

131.64

76.85

101.12

Revenue
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374

517

March 31, 2020

116.76 

34.49

20.66

2019-20

116.76

600

Financial Summary

654

March 31, 2021

131.64

25.10

39.80

CAGR

 20%

In Crores.
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“Always deliver more than expected” — Larry Page



DIRECTOR’S REPORT
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To,

The Members,

eMudhra Limited

Your directors’ take pleasure in presen�ng the 13th Annual Report on the business and opera�ons 
of the company and the accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

1. Financial Summary

a) Standalone Financial Summary
All amounts are in INR unless otherwise specified

Par�culars Standalone 

 For the year ended March 31, 

Financial Performance 2021 2020 

Income 1,09,75,75,405 1,03,38,24,395 

Profit before interest and deprecia�on 27,17,80,960 22,85,96,745 

 

 

Profit before tax 20,39,22,005 

 

15,69,60,286 

 

Provision for taxes 

 

5,47,03,000 

 

3,91,90,208 

 

Profit a�er tax 14,92,19,005 

 

11,77,70,078 

 

Dividend paid 

 

65,64,375 

 

60,08,008 

 

Profit a�er tax and appropria�on 14,26,54,630 

 

11,17,62,070 

 

Earnings per share (par value of Rs.5 per share): Basic and diluted 

 

2.13 1.68 
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b) Consolidated Financial Summary

Par�culars Consolidated 

  For the year ended March 31, 

Financial Performance 2021 2020 

Income 1,31,63,03,065  

 

116,75,87,219 

Profit before interest and deprecia�on 

 

  39,80,25,497  
 

  34,48,84,310  
 

Profit before tax    30,92,33,378  

 

25,24,37,914 

Provision for taxes 

 

    5,82,12,010  
 

4,58,46,206 

Profit a�er tax     25,10,21,368  

 

20,65,91,707 

Dividend paid 

 

       65,64,375  

 

60,08,008 

 

Profit a�er tax and appropria�on    24,44,56,993  

 

20,05,83,699 

 

Profit (loss) for the year - Minority interest 

 

     5,95,91,658  

 

2,85,37,684 

Profit (loss) for the year - a�ributable to eMudhra Limited    18,48,65,335  

 

17,20,46,016 

Earnings per share (par value of Rs.5 per share): Basic and diluted 

 

3.58 2.94 

 

2. Consolidated Financial Statements

The company has 7 subsidiaries as on March 31, 2021; out of which, 2 are Indian subsidiaries and the 
rest are foreign subsidiaries.

The company has consolidated the 100% subsidiaries on line by line basis and others are consolidated 
based on the relevant accoun�ng standards generally followed in India. There has been no change in 
the nature of business of these subsidiaries.

During the year, the company has acquired 51% stake in one foreign company, viz eMudhra B.V. and 
29.5% stake in PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia. Further during the year, one of the foreign 
subsidiary, eMudhra MU Ltd has announced capital reduc�on to the extent of Rs.3,68,00,000.

During the year, eMudhra Limited has redeemed 75,00,000 preference shares of 3i Infotech Limited at 
the rate of Rs.10 per share and has also paid the dividend for the holding period.

In terms of sec�on 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has not a�ached the financial 
statements of the subsidiary companies. The financial informa�on about the Indian subsidiary compa-

nies have been duly audited by the respec�ve qualified auditors. However, for foreign subsidiaries the 
unaudited financial informa�on has been taken onto account for the purpose of consolida�on. The 
consolidated financial statements presented by the company, which form part of this annual report 
are also based on the financial statements of its subsidiary companies.
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3. Dividend

During the year, the Board has approved and paid an interim dividend of Rs.17,34,375 [net of TDS 
amoun�ng to Rs.140,265] to 3i Infotech Limited.

During the year, your directors recommend a dividend of Rs.25,80,000 on Class A preference shares for 
the period ended March 31, 2021.

4. Transfer of Unclaimed Dividend to Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund

The company has paid all the dividends declared by the company to the beneficiaries within 30 days 
and there are no unpaid dividends as on the balance sheet date. 

5. Review of Business Opera�ons including Subsidiaries 

The consolidated financial statement of the company represents financials of eMudhra Limited with its 
100% subsidiary, eMudhra MU Ltd, Mauri�us and 51% subsidiaries viz. eMudhra Technologies Limited, 
eMudhra DMCC, UAE, eMudhra PTE LTD, Singapore, eMudhra INC, USA and eMudhra B.V, The
Netherlands, along with 76% subsidiary eMudhra Consumer Services Limited.

During the year under review there has been a considerable improvement in our opera�ons and 
posi�oning.  

Our Solu�ons:

As indicated in last year’s report, our emAS IAM solu�on was reposi�oned last year as an Analy�cs 
driven Iden�ty and Access Management solu�on. This strategy has worked well and has provided 
necessary differen�a�on. In view of this, our emAS IAM product con�nues to penetrate well in the 
market and we had several new sales of this product. 

emSigner, our document signing and workflow solu�on has become our flagship product both in the 
domes�c and interna�onal markets. During the year, several large Banking customers in India and 
Middle East have chosen this solu�on against interna�onal compe��on. The solu�on has also been 
ranked as a global solu�on on par with DocuSign and Adobe Sign in Gartner’s Market Guide for Elec-

tronic Signature. Further during the year several new features have been introduced in the product to 
make it feature rich. The product was also implemented in DevOps environment in one of the large 
banks in the Middle East. The customer base of this product has crossed 1000 during the financial year. 
Due to COVID 19, there is an increased need for Digital transforma�on across the globe, which also 
provides demand impetus for our emSigner product. 

As members are already aware our Core CA solu�on emCA has been successfully implemented in large 
installa�ons such as IDRBT in India and Baud Telecom Company in Saudi Arabia. This product has also 
been selected by large defence establishments in India and Middle East for their own PKI implementa-

�on. Using this product we have also started offering PKI in a cloud as we see a good demand for PKI in 
a cloud model. 

Apart from offering these solu�ons, we have made several improvements with regard to our eSign 
services and several large organisa�ons in India have today signed up for this service. Last year we also 
started offering emSign (global signing and �mestamping service) to global markets and this has 
evoked good response from customers and poten�al partners. 
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Interna�onal Posi�oning: 

The company’s Interna�onal posi�oning has improved considerably during the year. During the year 
about 19% of consolidated revenue was achieved from interna�onal opera�ons. In several countries 
in the Middle East, Far East and South America the company has been able to get large system inte-

grators as partners who bring significant leads. These partnerships with limited direct presence are 
likely to yield good results in the coming years. The orderbook and lead pipeline in Middle East and 
South America, has strengthened considerably during the year. Further a large system integrator in 
Europe has also selected our emCA product and will very soon take it to the European markets. This is 
expected to give some penetra�on in the European market in the coming year. 

Global Root Accredita�on: 

We had earlier indicated that the company has completed the procedures for lis�ng its roots (under 
brand name emSign) in the trust stores with leading browsers such as Microso�, Adobe, Google etc. 
The Company has also got the Webtrust seal and its roots have been listed on Microso�, Adobe and 
Mozilla Firefox. During the year lis�ng with Google and Android has also been completed. Lis�ng with 
Apple trust store is in advanced stage of discussion and is expected to be done in the next 2 to 3 
months. With this, we will be the only Indian company having our root accredited by major global 
trust stores. This can open up a huge poten�al for our SSL business.  

Membership of Global Fora:

The company has been a member of CA/Browser forum and a board member of European Cloud 
Signature Consor�um. It is worth no�ng here that eMudhra is the only Indian company admi�ed in 
such global fora rela�ng to the PKI industry. Our chairman con�nues to be  Chairman of Asia PKI 
Consor�um consis�ng of 10 member countries in Asia. During the year he has been elected as a 
Board member of European Cloud Signature Consor�um and he Chairs the Advocacy commi�ee of 
the Consor�um.  

eMudhra Campuses: 

1) Devanahalli Digital Signature Campus, Bangalore:

In the previous year’s report, we had indicated that in view of the COVID situa�on the comple�on of 
the project is expected to be delayed by one year. However, once the lockdown was li�ed the compa-

ny mobilised all the resources and speeded up the implementa�on. The Board is happy to report that 
the project was completed on March 31, 2021 without any major cost overrun and the company is in 
the process of complying with various procedures rela�ng to obtaining Occupancy cer�ficate from 
Government Authori�es. 

2) ELCOT SEZ Campus, Salem:

Though we received all the approvals and started the construc�on ac�vity in 2019, due to COVID, the 
ac�vi�es have stopped.  In the meanwhile, the 3 year period s�pulated by ELCOT for comple�on of 
construc�on got over during the last year. Hence the company has applied extension for another 3 
years for comple�ng the construc�on. The construc�on will be restarted upon ge�ng the approval 
for extension.
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Digtal Signature Cer�fcates and Crypto Tokens:

The digital signature and token sales have grown to Rs.67,24,69,902 from Rs.56,35,35,526 in the last 
financial year, reflec�ng a 19.33% growth year on year.

Enterprise Solu�on Business (emAS, emCA, emSigner etc.):

While the order book posi�on of Enterprise business improved considerably during the year, on a 
standalone basis, revenue from our solu�ons business for the financial year 2020-21 was 
Rs.42,11,99,933 as against Rs.46,68,40,268 in the previous financial year. The marginal decline was due 
to our inability to implement certain projects due to logis�cs related issues arising out of COVID 19 and 
realise corresponding revenue. On a consolidated basis, the solu�on business has grown by 7% to 
Rs.64,25,04,457 from Rs.60,07,01,156. During this year, we have received our first highest purchase 
order from Indian Defence through one reputed system integrator amoun�ng to Rs.17,46,34,000 in 
India.

Other Services:

Apart from the core business lines, the company has been providing online tax filling services for many 
years. These are non-core areas without much poten�al (as Government provides these services free). 
The revenue from these ac�vi�es are con�nuously dropping and in the repor�ng period the revenue 
fell by 50.5% to Rs.24,92,933 (included in Enterprise Solu�ons) from Rs.49,35,512 in the previous year. 
We propose to discon�nue this ac�vity from the coming year. 

General:

The revenue from opera�on of the company on standalone basis for the year ended 31st March 2021 
was Rs.1,09,36,69,835 showing an overall increase of 6.1%, as compared to previous year revenue of 
Rs.1,03,03,75,794. This has been achieved in spite of considerable loss of business during the first 
quarter due to the pandemic situa�on in the country.

The EBITDA has grown by 18.9% from Rs.22,85,96,745 to Rs.27,17,80,960 during the repor�ng period. 
EBITDA for the financial year is 24.8% of total revenue as compared to 22.1% in the last financial year.

The profit before tax and appropria�ons for the year under review is Rs.20,39,22,005 as compared to a 
profit of Rs.15,69,60,286 during the previous year showing an increase of 29.9%.

The Profit a�er tax and before appropria�ons in the Financial Statement for the year is Rs.14,92,19,005 
as compared to a profit of Rs.11,77,70,078 during the previous financial year. Further, company has 
made payment of dividend on preference shares of Rs.65,64,375. 

The basic and diluted earnings per share on a standalone basis increased from Rs.1.68 per equity share 
with a face value of Rs.5 per share to Rs.2.13 per share, showing an increase of 26.7%.
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The consolidated income of the company for the repor�ng period was Rs.1,31,63,03,065 as compared 
to Rs. 1,16,75,87,219 in FY 2020 showing growth of 12.7% in consolidated income. 

The consolidated EBITDA for the year under review is Rs.39,80,25,497 as compared to Rs.34,48,84,310 
during the previous year showing a growth of 15.4% as compared to previous year.

The Profit before tax and before appropria�ons in the consolidated Financial Statement for the year is 
Rs.30,92,33,378 as compared to a profit of Rs.25,24,37,914 during the previous financial year showing 
a growth of 22.5%.

The Profit a�er tax and before appropria�ons in the consolidated Financial Statement for the year is 
Rs.25,10,21,368 compared to a profit of Rs.20,65,91,707 during the previous financial year showing a 
growth of 22%.

The basic and diluted earnings per share on a consolidated basis increased to Rs.3.58 per equity share 
with a face value of Rs.5 per share from Rs.2.94 per share in the last financial year. 

COVID 19 Pandemic:

While COVID 19 Pandemic s�ll con�nues, with on and off lockdowns and other restric�ons, the      
company’s business con�nuity plans and work from home plans are working well and are able to take 
care of most of the requirements. However, during the second wave of pandemic in India (i.e., April 
and May 2021) the opera�ons were considerably affected as the customers and partners were facing 
huge challenges due to COVID 19. However, based on our last year’s experience we expect this to be a 
short-term phenomenon and opera�ons to comeback in the next few months. 

On the posi�ve side, COVID 19 has also created a need for digital transforma�on to ensure business 
con�nuity and work from home ecosystem for large organisa�ons. This has resulted in a huge lead 
pipeline for our company’s products from domes�c and interna�onal markets. 

6. Material changes and commitment if any affec�ng the financial posi�on of the company occurred 
between the end of the financial year to which these financial statements relate and the date of the 
report

As indicated earlier during April and May 2021, the business has been significantly affected by COVID 
19 Pandemic and consequen�al lockdowns imposed by the Government. Hence uncertainty arising 
out of COVID 19 is expected to con�nue for some more �me. However as there is no cash burn in the 
company even at lower levels of opera�ons, and as business is expected to come back to normal in a 
few months, the directors believe that we will be able to come out successfully from the COVID 19 
situa�on. 
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7. Conserva�on of Energy, Technology Absorp�on, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The provisions of Sec�on 134(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 rela�ng to conserva�on of energy and 
technology absorp�on do not apply to our company. 

The disclosure of foreign exchange earnings and outgo, in terms of provisions of Sec�on 134(3)(m) 
read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given hereunder:

Foreign Exchange 2020-2021 2019-2020 

Earnings 3,59,21,683 3,92,66,329 

Outgo 98,54,102 1,22,34,096 

 

8. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Ini�a�ves

The vision of CSR is to be socially and environmentally responsive organisa�on commi�ed to improve 
quality of life within and outside. We at eMudhra focus on impar�ng educa�on for employment by 
enhancing the voca�on skills especially in the informa�on technology area and arranging socio-eco-

nomic development programs through training and student empowerment programs. The Annual 
Report on our CSR ac�vi�es is appended as Annexure A to the Board’s report.

9. Par�culars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments 

Loans, guarantees and investments covered under Sec�on 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part 
of the Notes to the audited financial statements and the same is disclosed in note no. 15 and note no. 
16 of the audited financial statements. 

The company has an outstanding investment of Rs.19,14,50,155 [2020:21,27,34,125] in equity shares 
of various subsidiary/associate companies and also has a loan outstanding of Rs.3,03,59,003  
[2020:3,06,84,003] to the eMudhra employees Stock Op�ons Trust.

10. Board of Directors

10.1 Composi�on

The composi�on of the board of directors of the company is furnished in Annexure B (1) to this 

report.

In accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. V Srinivasan will 
re�re by rota�on at the ensuing AGM and being eligible, offer himself for re-elec�on. The Board has 
recommended his re-elec�on.

10.2 Number of Board Mee�ngs conducted during the year under review

During the year the board has duly met Four (4) �mes and the �me gap between any two board 
mee�ngs did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The board of directors regularly reviews 
compliance reports pertaining to all the laws applicable to the company. The details of the Board 
mee�ngs are provided in Annexure B (2).
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11. Internal Complaints Commi�ee

The company has cons�tuted an Internal Complaints Commi�ee (IC) to consider and resolve all sexual 
harassment complaints reported by women. The cons�tu�on of the IC is as per the Sexual Harass-

ment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013. There were no cases 
reported during the financial year 2020-21.
   

12. Company’s policy rela�ng to Director’s appointment, payment of remunera�on and discharge of 
their du�es

The company appoints director(s) based on need. They are selected based on merit and their appoint-
ment, remunera�on and other eligibility parameters are ve�ed by the Nomina�on and Remunera�on 
Commi�ee. The nomina�on and remunera�on commi�ee currently consists of Dr N.L. Sarda, 
Chairman, Mr Manoj Kunkalienkar and Mr V. Srinivasan. 

13. Declara�on by Independent Directors

All the independent directors of the company have submi�ed their disclosure to the Board that they 
fulfil all the requirements as s�pulated in Sec�on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013, so as to qualify 
themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, 
and the relevant rules and also have complied with the Code for Independent Directors prescribed in 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013.

14. Evalua�on by Board

The Board has made a formal annual evalua�on of its own performance, Commi�ees of the Board, 
Independent Directors and Individual Directors of the Company.

The performance of the Independent Directors as well as Individual Directors including the Chairman 
of the Board were evaluated based on Competence, Ethics and Values, Leadership, Knowledge, 
Diligence and Par�cipa�on.  

The Board of Directors were sa�sfied with the evalua�on process which ensured that the perfor-

mance of the Board, its Commi�ees, Independent Directors and Individual Directors are adequate. 

15. Annual Return

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013, an extract of the annual return in prescribed format is 
appended as Annexure C to the Board’s Report and available on the Company's website 
www.emudhra.com.

16. Secretarial Standards

The Company complies with all applicable mandatory secretarial standards issued by the Ins�tute of 
Companies Secretaries of India.

17. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to Sec�on 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors to the best of their knowl-
edge hereby state and confirm that: 

40



a) in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards have been followed 
along with proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accoun�ng policies and applied them consistently and made judg-

ments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of 
affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that 
period;

c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for 
preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;

d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 
laws and that such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

18. Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Companies

During this year, the company has invested in 51,000 equity shares, being 51%, of eMudhra B.V, The 
Netherlands, a subsidiary company, at a face value of Euro 1 per share amoun�ng to Rs.46,11,650 
[2020: NIL]. Further invested in 147,500 equity shares, being 29.5%, of PT eMudhra Technologies Indo-

nesia, an associate company, at a face value of  USD 1 per share amoun�ng to Rs.1,09,04,380 
[2020:NIL].

The company during the year had also divested its investment in its 100% subsidiary company, eMudhra 
MU Ltd since the la�er has affected capital reduc�on during quarter 4 of the FY 2020-21 amoun�ng to 
Rs.3,68,00,000 [2020:NIL] along with redemp�on premium of Rs.25,76,865 [2020:NIL].

In accordance with Sec�on 129 (3) of the Act, a separate statement containing salient features of the 
financial statement of the subsidiaries of the Company in Form AOC-1 is given in Annexure D.

S. NO. SUBSIDIARY COMPANY PROFILE 

1 eMudhra Technologies Limited • The company is engaged in providing signing solu�ons and 

associated services, along with other services around PKI 

technologies. 
2 eMudhra MU Limited • The company is a Cer�fying Authority in Mauri�us and is 

engaged in providing digital signature and other allied 

services in and around PKI technologies. 
3 eMudhra Consumer Services Limited • The company is engaged in providing various so�ware 

products, IT and IT enabled products, etc. The company’s 

product, emSigner [paperless office solu�on], is a�aining 

major trac�on across the globe.  
4 eMudhra DMCC • The company is a marke�ng company for eMudhra 

products and allied services in Middle East and Africa 

[MEA] region. During the year it has also built its own 

product.  
5 eMudhra INC • The company is a marke�ng company for eMudhra 

products and allied services in Americas region. 
6 eMudhra PTE Ltd • The company is a marke�ng company for eMudhra 

products and allied services in Asia - Pacific [APAC] region. 

7 eMudhra B.V • The company is a marke�ng company for eMudhra 

products and allied services in Europe region 
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19. Related Party Transac�ons

The Board of directors have approved related party transac�ons, all of them are under arm’s length 
basis. The summary of related party transac�ons is also provided in Note no.34 of the audited finan-

cial statements.

Par�culars of Contracts or arrangements with related par�es referred to Sec�on 188(1) of the Compa-

nies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, are appended as Annexure E to the Board’s Report.

20. Deposits

The company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

21. Auditors

Statutory Auditor

M/s Manohar Chowdhry and Associates were appointed by the shareholders at the Eleventh AGM 
(AGM 2019), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second term of five consecu�ve years to 
hold office un�l the conclusion of the Sixteenth AGM (AGM 2024). The requirement for the annual 
ra�fica�on of auditors’ appointment has been omi�ed pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 
2017 no�fied on May 07, 2018 and that they are free from any disqualifica�on specified in Sec�on 
141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

Statutory Auditors Report

The statutory auditors report to the members for the year ended March 31, 2021 does not contain 
any qualifica�on, reserva�on, adverse remark or disclaimer. Further auditors have not reported any 
ma�er under Sec�on 143(12) of the Act and therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under 
Sec�on 134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act,2013.

Secretarial Auditor 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appoint-
ment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. S P 
Nagarajan, Company Secretary in prac�ce, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 
secretarial audit report does not contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on, adverse remark or disclaimer 
for the year 2020-21.

22. Details in respect of frauds reported by the auditor under sec�on 143(12)  of the Companies 
Act, 2013

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Audit Commi�ee 
or the Board under sec�on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

23. Disclosure Rela�ng to Maintenance of Cost Records

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Sec�on 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the company.
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24. Risk Management Policy

Risk Management and Mi�ga�on is taken care of by the Board and Execu�ve Management by 
appropriate delega�on, repor�ng and authority structure. Risk Management is also ensured by 
pu�ng various checks and balances across various func�ons. It is integrated into management, 
Board and annual repor�ng mechanism. 

As part of Risk Management, the company also has put in place an Internal Audit Mechanism com-

mensurate with size of business and nature of its opera�ons. As part of this exercise, the Company 
con�nues to engage M/s Suri & Company, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors of the Com-

pany. Their scope of work includes review of processes for safeguarding the assets of the Company, 
review of opera�onal efficiency, effec�veness of systems and processes, and assessing the internal 
control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors findings are discussed with the process owners and 
suitable correc�ve ac�ons are taken to improve efficiency in opera�ons. Internal audit reports are 
also discussed in the Audit Commi�ee and Board mee�ngs. The purpose of this policy is:

1. To ensure protec�on of shareholder value through the establishment of an integrated Risk
Management framework for iden�fying, assessing, mi�ga�ng, monitoring, evalua�ng and repor�ng 
of all risks

2. To provide clear and strong basis for informed decision making at all levels of the organiza�on

3. To con�nually strive towards strengthening the “Risk Management & Compliance System” 
through con�nuous learning and improvement.

25. Credit Ra�ngs

The company has engaged the credit ra�ng agency ICRA limited based on the recommenda�ons of 
our prime lender, Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited. As per ICRA, the company was awarded long-term 
ra�ng of [ICRA]BBB (pronounced as ICRA triple B). The outlook on the long-term ra�ng is ‘stable’. 
The ICRA also assigned short-term ra�ng of [ICRA]A3+ (pronounced as ICRA A three plus). These 
ra�ngs are valid �ll July 31,2021. 

26. Disclosure as required under Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuner-

a�on of Managerial Personnel) rules, 2014.

a) During the financial year, the company has not employed any person with the aggregate remu-

nera�on for Rs.1,02,00,000 per annum if employed throughout the year or Rs.8,50,000 per month if 
employed for part of the year.

b) During the financial year, the company has employed Mr. Kaushik Srinivasan, who was in receipt 
of remunera�on (Refer note 34(B.3) in the standalone audited financials) in that year which, in the 
aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn by the 
Managing Director or Whole-�me Director or Manager and holds by himself or along with his 
spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the equity shares of the company.
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27. Disclosure of Composi�on of Audit Commi�ee and Providing Vigil Mechanism

During the year, the Audit Commi�ee of the Board of Directors of the company comprised of 3 
(Three) members namely Mr. Manoj Kunkalienkar, Chairman, Mr. V Srinivasan and Dr. N L Sarda.

The above composi�on of the Audit Commi�ee consists of 2 (two) Independent Directors, Dr. N L 
Sarda and Mr. Manoj Kunkalienkar, who form the majority.

The Board accepted the recommenda�ons of the Audit Commi�ee whenever made by the Commit-
tee during the year. The Audit Commi�ee duly met once on June 10, 2020, during the financial year 
under review and all the members were present in the said mee�ng.

The company has established a vigil mechanism to oversee, the genuine concerns, if any expressed 
by the employees. The company has also provided adequate safeguards against vic�miza�on of 
employees who express their concerns. The company has also provided direct access to the 
Chairman on repor�ng issues concerning the interests of co-employees and the company.

28. Transfer to Reserves

During the year, we have transferred Rs.7,50,00,000 [2020: NIL] to the capital redemp�on reserve 
[refer note 4 to the standalone audited financials]. 

29. Shares

a. Buy Back of Shares

During the year, the company has redeemed 75,00,000 preference shares of 3i Infotech Limited at 
the rate of Rs.10 [face value] per share amoun�ng to Rs.7,50,00,000 [2020: NIL].

b. Sweat Equity

The company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review.

c. Bonus Shares

No bonus shares were issued during the year under review.

d. Employee Stock Op�on Plan

During the year, the company has issued stock op�ons rela�ng to 6,55,000 equity shares at par value 
through the eMudhra Employees’ Stock Op�on Trust and has cancelled 3,50,000 stock op�ons relat-
ing to equity shares. 

During the year, one ex-employee of the company has exercised the vested stock op�ons for 75,000 
equity shares pursuant to the employee stock op�on scheme against a payment of Rs.3,75,000 to the 
said trust. These shares have been transferred to her on October 20,2020 from eMudhra Employee 
Stock Op�on Trust.   

The unissued closing balance at the year end is 11,77,801 stock op�ons of equity shares out of the 
60,57,801 stock op�ons on equity shares at the year end.
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ANNEXURE ''A'' TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1. Brief Outline on CSR Policy of the Company

 

The vision of CSR is to be a socially and environmentally responsive organisa�on commi�ed to 
improve quality of life within and outside. We at eMudhra focus on impar�ng educa�on for employ-

ment by enhancing the voca�on skills especially in the Informa�on Technology area and arranging 
socio-economic development programs through training and student empowerment programs. 

In line with the above vision, we have engaged two of our employees to handle this en�re func�on 
by interac�ng with colleges/universi�es for sending students for such courses, which are being 
conducted at our Bellandur, Bangalore office. During the year we have conducted two workshops. 
The first workshop was conducted on February 13, 2021 with respect to “Digital Security” with 45 
students of Surana College, Bangalore. The second workshop was conducted on March 19, 2021 
with respect to “Digital Security-Secure So�ware Development Life Cycle” with another batch of 45 
students of the same college. Further two of our employees who are assigned to this ac�vity con�n-

uously interact with students on these subjects to impart more knowledge to them. 

In the current financial year, the company is planning to conduct more such workshops and will 
earmark appropriate amount required for such ac�vity having regard to the 2% of average net profit 
for the last 3 years.

2. Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee

S. No. Name of Director Designa�on / Nature 

of Directorship 

Number of mee�ngs of 

CSR Commi�ee held 

during the year 

1 Venkatraman Srinivasan Chairman 1 

2 N L Sarda Independent Director 1 

3 Manoj Kunkalienkar Independent Director 1 

4 Venu Madhava Whole-Time Director  

5 Saji K Louiz Chief Financial Officer  

 

3. Web-link where Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR Projects approved by the 
Board are disclosed on the website of the company-

h�ps://www.emudhra.com/governance.jsp 
 

4. Details of Impact Assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of 
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (a�ach the report)

 Not applicable

46

1



5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any

 Not applicable

S. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 

preceding financial years (in Rs.) 
Amount required to be set-off for 

the financial year, if any (in Rs.) 

1    

2    

3    

 Total   

 

6. Average Net Profit of the company as per Sec�on 135(5)
₹9,84,86,984 [Refer note 40 to the audited financials for details]

7. 

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5)
                                                                                                                                                                                                             

₹19,69,740

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years

₹0

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

₹0

(d) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)

₹19,69,740

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

 

Total Amount 

Spent for the 

Financial Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 

Unspent CSR Account as per 

sec�on 135(6) 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 

under Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

sec�on 135(5) 

 Amount Date of transfer Name of the 

Fund 
Amount Date of 

transfer 

₹21,78,348 

 

Nil  Nil Nil  
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6. Average Net Profit of the company as per Sec�on 135(5)
₹9,84,86,984 [Refer note 40 to the audited financials for details]

(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5)
                                                                                                                                                                                                             

₹19,69,740

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years

₹0

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any

₹0

(d) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (7a+7b-7c)

₹19,69,740

 (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not applicable

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

1 2 3 4 6 7

State District Name
CSR registra�on 

number

1

Impar�ng 

educa�on for 

employment by 

enhancing the 

voca�on skil ls 

especially in the 

informa�on 

technology area 

and arranging 

socio-economic 

development 

programs 

through training 

and student 

empowerment 

programs

Promo�ng 

Educa�on
Yes ₹ 21,78,348 Yes - -

2

3

Total ₹ 21,78,348

Bangalore, 

Karnataka

5 8

S. No.
Name of the 

Project

Item from the list 

of ac�vi�es in 

schedule VII to 

the Act

Local area (Yes/ 

No)

Loca�on of the 

project
Amount spent for 

the project (in Rs.)

Mode of 

implementa�on - 

Direct (Yes/No)

Mode of implementa�on - 

Through implemen�ng agency

(d) Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads
 – Not applicable

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable 
– Not applicable

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e)

 

1 2 3 4 6 7 8 9 10

State District Name

CSR 

Registra�on 

number

1

2

3

Total

Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account for the 

project as per 

Sec�on 135(6) (in 

Rs.)

Mode of 

Implemen

ta�on - 

Direct 

(Yes/No)

Mode of 

Implementa�on - 

Through Implemen�ng 

Agency

5 11

S. No.

Name of 

the 

Project

Item from the 

list of ac�vi�es 

in Schedule VII 

to the Act

Local area 

(Yes/No)

Loca�on of the 

project

Project 

dura�on

Amount 

allocated 

for the 

project (in 

Rs.)

Amount spent in 

the current 

financial Year (in 

Rs.)
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S. No. Par�cular Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per 

sec�on 135(5) 
19,69,740 

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 21,78,348 

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 2,08,608 

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or 

ac�vi�es of the previous financial years, if any 
 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years 

[(iii)-(iv)] 
 

 

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not applicable

S. No. Preceding 

Financial Year 
Amount 

transferred to 

Unspent CSR 

Account under 

sec�on 135 (6) 

(in Rs.) 

Amount spent 

in the 

repor�ng 

Financial Year 

(in Rs.) 

Amount transferred to any 

fund specified under 

Schedule VII as per sec�on 

135(6), if any 

Amount 

remaining to 

be spent in 

succeeding 

financial 

years (in Rs.) 
Name of 

the Fund 
Amount 

(in Rs) 
Date of 

transfer 

1.        

2.        

3.        

 Total       

 

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 
financial year(s): Not applicable

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

S. No. Project ID Name of 

the 

Project 

Financial 

Year in 

which the 

project 

commenced 

Project 

dura�on 
Total 

amount 

allocated 

for the 

project (in 

Rs.) 

Amount 

spent on 

the 

project in 

the 

repor�ng 

Financial 

Year (in 

Rs) 

Cumula�ve 

amount 

spent at 

the end of 

repor�ng 

Financial 

Year (in 

Rs.) 

Status of 

the 

project - 

Completed 

/Ongoing 

1         

2         

3         

 Total        

 

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Not applicable
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10. In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset, furnish the details rela�ng to the asset so 
created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not applicable

(Asset-wise details)
 

(a) Date of crea�on or acquisi�on of the capital asset(s)

(b) Amount of CSR spent for crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset

(c) Details of the en�ty or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and loca�on 
of the capital asset)

   

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit 
as per sec�on 135(5)

Not applicable

50

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Of eMudhra Limited

V Srinivasan 

Director     

DIN: 00640646    

Venu Madhava

Director

DIN: 06748204 

Date: May 21, 2021
Place: Bangalore

Sd:/- Sd:/-



ANNEXURE ''B'' TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

1. Composi�on of the Board of Directors of the company was as follows

S.

 No.

1 V. Srinivasan Promoter Chairman Ac�ve

2
Dr. Nandlal L. 

Sarda

Independent 

Director
Ac�ve

3
Manoj  

Kunkalienkar

Independent 

Director
Ac�ve

4 Venu Madhava Non- Promoter
Whole- �me 

Director
Ac�ve

Name of the 

Director
Category Status

Non-Promoter

2. A�endance of each director at the mee�ng of Board of Directors and the Annual General Mee�ng

S.
Name of the 

Director

1 V. Srinivasan √ √ √ √ √ √ √

2
Dr. Nandlal L. 

Sarda
√ √ √ √ - - -

3
Manoj  

Kunkalienkar
√ √ √ √ - - -

4 Venu Madhava √ √ √ √ √ √ √
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ANNEXURE ''C'' TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on Financial Year ended on 31.03.2021

Pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
 (Management & Administra�on) Rules, 2014

I.  REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS

1. CIN U72900KA2008PLC060368     

2. Registra�on Date 16/06/2008 

3. Name of the Company eMudhra Limited 

4. Category/Sub-category of 

the Company 

Company Limited by Shares/ Indian Non-Government Company 

5. Address of the Registered 

office  & contact details 

#56, 3rd Floor, Sai Arcade, Outer Ring Road, Devarabeesanahalli, 

Bangalore - 560103 

6. Whether Listed Company No 

7. Name, Address & Contact 

Details of the Registrar & 

Transfer Agent, if any 

- 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 

All the business ac�vi�es contribu�ng 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated

S. No. Name and Descrip�on of main 

Products / Services 

NIC Code of the 

Product/Service 

 

%  to total turnover of the 

Company 

1 Digital Signature Cer�ficates & 

Crypto Tokens 

62099 61.5% 

2 Enterprise Security Solu�ons 62099 38.5% 
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III.PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

All the business ac�vi�es contribu�ng 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated

S. No. Name Address of the 

Company
CIN

Holding/Subsidiary
/Associate

% of Shares 

held

Applicable 

Sec�on

2 eMudhra 

Technologies 

Limited

#56, 3rd Floor, Sai 

Arcade, Outer Ring 

Road, 

Devarabeesanahalli, 

Bangalore - 560103

U72200K
A2012PLC

065153

Subsidiary 51% Sec�on 2(87)

3 eMudhra 

Consumer 

Services 

Limited

#56, 3rd Floor, Sai 

Arcade, Outer Ring 

Road, 

Devarabeesanahalli, 

Bangalore – 560103

U72900K
A2018PLC

115186

Subsidiary 76% Sec�on 2(87)

4 eMudhra DMCC 3006 One Lake Plaza, 

Cluster T, JLT, Dubai, 

UAE P.O 32620
- Subsidiary 51% Sec�on 2(87)

5 eMudhra INC 97 Cedar Grove Lane, 

Suite 202 Somerset, NJ 
08873

-        Subsidiary 51% Sec�on 2(87)

Wilhelmina Van 

Pruisenwg
000104

2595AN S-

Gravenhague

7 eMudhra PTE 

Ltd

1 Phillip Street, # 03-

01 Royal One Phillip, 

Singapore (048692) - Subsidiary 51% Sec�on 2(87)

8 PT eMudhra 

Technologies 

Indonesia

Griha Mampang, Lantai 

3, Suit 305, Jalan 

Mampang Prpt Raya, 

KAV 100, Jakarta 

Selatan, DKI Jakarta 

12760 Indonesia

- Associate 29.50% Sec�on 2(87)

Sec�on 2(87)

6 eMudhra B V

-        Subsidiary 51% Sec�on 2(87)

1 eMudhra  (MU) 

Ltd

10 Frere Felix De 

Valois Street, Port 

Louis, 1116-07
- Subsidiary 100%
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding

54

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year 

No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 

Change
 during

 the 

year    
 

  Demat Physi

cal 

Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

 

Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

A. Promoter s     
 

  
  

(1) Indian      
  

  

a) Individual/ 

HUF 
27973964

 

 

0 27973964

 

 

39.86 27973964
 

 

0 27973964
 

 

39.86 - 

b) Others 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - 

 

(2) Foreign 
 

  
  

  
  

a) Bodies Corp. 18359123 0 18359123 26.16 18359123 0 18359123 26.16 - 

b) Others – 

Individuals 

 

10510869 - 10510869 14.98 

 

10510869 - 10510869 14.98 - 

    
  

  
  

Total 

shareholding of 

Promoter (A) 

56843956

 

0 56843956

 

81

 

56843956

 

0

 

56843956

 

81

 

-
 

 

Demat



B. Public Shareholding

1. Ins�tu�ons - - - - - - - - -

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

b) Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

c) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

e) Venture Capital 

Funds
- - - - - - - - -

f) Insurance 

Companies
- - - - - - - - -

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - -

 h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds
- - - - - - - - -

i) Others (Trust) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - - - -
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19. Related Party Transac�ons

The Board of directors have approved related party transac�ons, all of them are under arm’s length 
basis. The summary of related party transac�ons is also provided in Note no.34 of the audited finan
cial statements.

Par�culars of Contracts or arrangements with related par�es referred to Sec�on 188(1) of the Compa
nies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC-2, are appended as Annexure E to the Board’s Report.

The company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

M/s Manohar Chowdhry and Associates were appointed by the shareholders at the Eleventh AGM 
(AGM 2019), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the second term of five consecu�ve years to 
hold office un�l the conclusion of the Sixteenth AGM (AGM 2024). The requirement for the annual 
ra�fica�on of auditors’ appointment has been omi�ed pursuant to Companies (Amendment) Act, 
2017 no�fied on May 07, 2018 and that they are free from any disqualifica�on specified in Sec�on 
141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. 

The statutory auditors report to the members for the year ended March 31, 2021 does not contain 
any qualifica�on, reserva�on, adverse remark or disclaimer. Further auditors have not reported any 
ma�er under Sec�on 143(12) of the Act and therefore no detail is required to be disclosed under 
Sec�on 134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act,2013.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appoint
ment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. S P 
Nagarajan, Company Secretary in prac�ce, to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The 
secretarial audit report does not contain any qualifica�on, reserva�on, adverse remark or disclaimer 
for the year 2020-21.

22. Details in respect of frauds reported by the auditor under sec�on 143(12)  of the Companies 

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Audit Commi�ee 
or the Board under sec�on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.

23. Disclosure Rela�ng to Maintenance of Cost Records

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Sec�on 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, for any of the services rendered by the company.

2. Non-Ins�tu�ons

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian - - - - - - - - -

ii) Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - -

i) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

upto Rs. 1 lakh

7202935 - 7202935 10.26 7277935 - 7277935 10.37 -

ii) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

in excess of Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

c) Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Non Resident Indians - - - - - - - - -

Overseas Corporate Bodies - - - - - - - - -

Foreign Na�onals - - - - - - - - -

Clearing Members - - - - - - - - -

Trusts 6132801 - 6132801 8.74 6057801 - 6057801 8.63 -

Foreign Bodies - D R - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

- - - - - - - - -

C. Shares held by 

Custodian for GDRs & 

ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total (A+B+C) 70179692 0 70179692 100 70179692 0 70179692 100 -

- - - - - - - - -
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B) Shareholding of Promoter

C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) – No Change

S. 
No. 

Par�culars Shareholding at the 

beginning of the year 

Cumula�ve Shareholding 

during the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of the 

company 

1      

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Allotment by virtue of amalgama�on  - - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 

  - - - - 

2  - - - - 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Allotment by virtue of amalgama�on  - - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 

  - - - - 
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SN Shareholder’

s Name 

Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year 

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 

shareholding 

during the year 

  

  No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumber

ed to total 

shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of 

Shares 

Pledged 

/ 

encumb

ered to 

total 

shares 

1 V Srinivasan 27973964 39.86 - 27973964 39.86 - - 

2 Mythili 

Srinivasan 2437836 3.47 - 2437836 3.47 - 

- 

3 Kaushik 

Srinivasan 1436518 2.05 - 1436518 2.05 - 

- 

4 Arvind 

Srinivasan 6636515 9.46 - 6636515 9.46 - 

 

- 

5 Taarav Pte 

Ltd 
18359123 26.16 - 18359123 26.16 - - 

 



D) Shareholding Pa�ern of Top Ten Shareholders
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs)

S. 

No. 

For Each of the Top 10 

Shareholders 

Shareholding at the 

beginning 

of the year 

Cumula�ve 

Shareholding during 

the 

year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Date wise Increase / Decrease in 

Promoters Shareholding during the year 

specifying the reasons for increase 

/decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / 

bonus/ sweat equity etc.): 

- - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 

 

E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

S. 

No. 

Shareholding of each Director and each 

Key Managerial Personnel 

Shareholding at the 

beginning 

of the year 

Cumula�ve 

Shareholding during the 

year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total 

shares of 

the 

company 

1 V Srinivasan, Chairman     

 At the beginning of the year 27973964 39.86 - - 

 Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equity etc. - - - - 

 At the end of the year 27973964 39.86 - - 

2 Venu Madhava, Whole-Time Director     

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equity etc. - - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 

3 N L Sarda, Independent Director     

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equity etc. - - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 

4 Manoj Kunkalienkar, Independent 

Director 

    

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equity etc. - - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 

      

5 Saji K Louiz     

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equity etc. - - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 

6 Johnson Xavier - - - - 

 At the beginning of the year - - - - 

 Allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat 

equity etc. - - - - 

 At the end of the year - - - - 
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V) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the company including interest outstanding/accrued but not
due for payment

  
Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 
Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the 

beginning of the financial 

year 

        

i) Principal Amount 
     

29,38,03,575  

     

2,16,00,000  
  

     

31,54,03,575  

ii) Interest due but not 

paid 
- - -  -  

iii) Interest accrued but 

not due 
- - -  -  

Total (i+ii+iii) 
     

29,38,03,575  

     

2,16,00,000  
  

     

31,54,03,575  

Change in Indebtedness 

during the financial year 
        

* Addi�on 
     

7,74,34,417  

     

-    
  

     

7,74,34,417  

* Reduc�on 
     

5,60,37,487  

     

2,16,00,000  
  

     

7,76,37,487  

Net Change 
                                 -

2,13,96,930  

     

2,16,00,000  

     

-    

     

2,03,070  

Indebtedness at the end 

of the financial year 
        

i) Principal Amount 
     

31,52,00,505  

     

-    
  

     

31,52,00,505  

ii) Interest due but not 

paid 
 -   -    

     

-    

iii) Interest accrued but 

not due 
 -   -     -  

Total (i+ii+iii) 
     

31,52,00,505  

     

-    
  

     

31,52,00,505  
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remunera�on to Managing Director, Whole-�me Directors and/or Manager

S. 
No. 

Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount 

  Venu 

Madhava 

 ---- ---  

1 Gross salary 43,63,729 

 
   43,63,729 

 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in sec�on 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961 

- - - - - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 
- - - - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under 

sec�on 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 
- - - - - 

2 Stock Op�on - - - - - 

3 Sweat Equity - - - - - 

4 Commission 

-  as % of profit 

-  others, specify… 

- - - - - 

5 Others, please specify - - - - - 

  Total (A) 43,63,729 

 
- - - 43,63,729 

   Ceiling as per the Act - - - - - 

 

B. Remunera�on to other directors

S. 
No. 

Par�culars of Remunera�on Name of Directors  Total 

Amount 

         

1 Independent Directors 
  

Manoj 
Kunkalienkar 

NL Sarda  
 

Fee for a�ending board commi�ee 

mee�ngs 

- 

 
2,25,000 2,25,000 

 
4,50,000

 

Commission  7,69,884 7,69,884 15,39,768 

Others, please specify - - -  

Total (1) - 9,94,884 9,94,884 19,89,768 

2 Other Non-Execu�ve Directors - - -  

Fee for a�ending board commi�ee 

mee�ngs 
- - - 

 

Commission - - -  

Others, please specify - - -  

  Total (2) - - -  

  Total (B)=(1+2) - 9,94,884 9,94,884 19,89,768 

  

Total Managerial 

Remunera�on 
- - - 

 

  Overall Ceiling as per the Act - - -  
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD 

S. 
No. 

Par�culars of Remunera�on Key Managerial Personnel 

   CEO CS CFO Total 

1 Gross salary  NA 14,86,281 39,47,377 54,33,658 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

sec�on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 

1961 

- 

 -  -  - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 

Income-tax Act, 1961 
- 

 -  -  - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under sec�on 

17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 
- 

 - -  - 

2 Stock Op�on -  -  -  - 

3 Sweat Equity -  -  -   

4 Commission -  -  -   

  -  as % of profit -  -  -   

  others, specify… -  -  -   

5 Others, please specify -  -  -   

  Total - 14,86,281 39,47,377 54,33,658 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NOT APPLICABLE

Type Sec�on of the 

Companies Act 

Brief 

Descrip�on 

Details of Penalty 

/ Punishment/ 

Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 

[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal made, 

if any (give 

Details) 

A. COMPANY 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty - - - - - 

Punishment - - - - - 

Compounding - - - - - 
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Of eMudhra Limited

V Srinivasan 

Director     

DIN: 00640646    

Venu Madhava

Director

DIN: 06748204 

Date: May 21, 2021
Place: Bangalore

Sd:/-Sd:/-
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ANNEXURE “D” TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Form AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 129 read with rule 5 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/Associate 
Companies/Joint Ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Informa�on in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

S. No. Par�culars Details   

1.  Name of the 

Subsidiary 

eMudhra 

Technologies 

Limited 

eMudhra (MU) 

Ltd 

eMudhra 

Consumer 

Services Limited 

eMudhra 

DMCC 

eMudhra INC eMudhra PTE 

Ltd 

eMudhra B V 

2.  Repor�ng Period 

for the subsidiary 

concerned, if 

different from the 

holding company’s 

repor�ng period 

01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021 

01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021 

01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021 

01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021 

01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021 

01.04.2020 to 

31.03.2021 

08.01.2021 to 

31.03.2021 

3.  Repor�ng Currency 

and Exchange rate 

as on the last date 

of the relevant 

Financial year in 

the case of foreign 

subsidiaries 

INR 

[Indian Rupee] 
MUR 

[Mauri�an 

Rupee] 

INR 

[Indian Rupee] 
AED 

[Arab Emirates 

Dirhams] 

USD 

[United States 

Dollar] 

SGD 

[Singapore 

Dollar] 

EURO 

[Euro] 

4.  Share Capital 2,95,05,520 5,15,84,770 5,00,00,000 1,00,000 2,05,000 2,50,000 1,00,000 

5.  Reserves & Surplus  

(84,72,422) 66,16,493 

 

2,83,21,772 

 

62,69,316 

 

(3,94,218) 

 

91,315 

 

(10,765) 

6.  Total Assets 2,59,31,229 5,81,90,209 8,66,67,327 1,16,64,817 4,987 4,59,171 2,292 

7.  Total Liabili�es 2,59,31,229 5,81,90,209 8,66,67,327 1,16,64,817 4.987 4,59,171 2,292 

8.  Investments - - - 64,04,856 - - - 

9.  Turnover 1,38,58,944 (3,22,350) 7,92,23,726 1,27,78,563 2,00,233 6,904 7,500 

10.  Profit before 

Taxa�on 

 

(97,47,408) 

 

2,47,09,179 

 

1,08,09,517 

 

56,75,693 

 

(1,49,028) 

 

(42,661) 

 

1,553 

11.  Provision for 

Taxa�on 7,98,000 
-
 

27, 11,010
 

-

 

-

 

-

 

-

 

12.  Profit a�er 

Taxa�on 

 

(1,05,45,408) 

 

2,47,09,179 

 

80,98,507 

 

56,75,693 

 

(1,49,028) 

 

(42,661) 

 

1,553 

13.  Proposed Dividend - - - - - - - 

14.
  % of Shareholding  

51%
 

 100%
 

 
76%

 

 
51%

 

 
51%

 

 51%
 

 51%
 

 

Notes: The following informa�on shall be furnished at the end of the statement:
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence opera�ons
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year

Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies
and Joint Ventures – Not Applicable

Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

V. Srinivasan 

Director     

DIN: 00640646    

Venu Madhava

Director

DIN: 06748204 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF EMUDHRA LIMITED

Date: May 21, 2021
Place: Bangalore

Sd:/- Sd:/-
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ANNEXURE “E” TO DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Form No. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of par�culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
par�es referred to in sub-sec�on (1) of sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 

length transac�ons under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac�ons not at arm’s length basis

S. No.

Name(s) of the 

related party 

and nature of 

rela�onship

Nature of 

contracts/arrange

ments/transac�ons

Dura�on of the 

contracts / 

arrangements/
transac�ons

Salient terms of 

the contracts or 

arrangements or 

transac�ons 

including the 

value, if any

Jus�fica�on 

for entering 

into such 

contracts or 

arrangements 

or 

transac�ons

Date(s) of 

approval by the 

Board

Amount paid 

as advances, 

if any

Date on which 

the special 

resolu�on was 

passed in 

general 

mee�ng as 

required under 

first proviso to 

sec�on 188

NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA
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S. 
No. 

Name(s) of 

the related 

party and 

nature of 

rela�onship 

Nature of 

contracts/arran

gements/transa

c�ons 

Dura�on of the 

contracts / 

arrangements/tran

sac�ons 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transac�ons including 

the value, if any 

Date(s) of 

approval 

by the 

Board, if 

any 

Amount paid 

as advances, if 

any 

1 eMudhra 

Consumer 

Services 

Limited 

Sale of 

Product/Services

 

 

Sale of So�ware 

Licensing Fees 

 

Purchase of 

So�ware 

Licensing Fees 

 

 

One �me 

 

 

 

One �me 

 

 

One �me 

 

 

 

Rs. 2,50,00,000 

 

 

 

Rs. 5,94,300 

 

 

Rs. 3,65,95,471 

 

 

 

 

 

10th
 June 

2020 

- 

2 eMudhra 

Technologies

Limited  

Sale of So�ware 

Licensing Fees 

 

Purchase of 

So�ware 

Licensing Fees 

 

 

One �me 

 

 

One �me 

 

 

 

Rs. 29,48,403 

 

 

Rs. 1,14,10,000 

 

 

 

10th
 June 

2020 

- 

3 Bluesky 

Infotech 

Sale of 

Product /Services

 

 

Purchase of 

Product /Services

 

 

Commission 

Paid 

One �me 

 

 

 

One �me 

 

 

 

One �me 

 

 

 

 

 

Rs. 10,96,04,262 

 

 

 

Rs. 7,83,19,748 

 

 

 

Rs. 1,94,62, 661 

 

10th
 June 

2020 

 

4 eMudhra 

DMCC 

Sale of 

Product/Services

 

 

Sale of So�ware 

Licensing Fees 

 

One �me 

 

 

 

One �me 

Rs. 74,14,742 

 

 

 

Rs. 48,37,362 

10th
 June 

2020 

 

5 eMudhra BV Investment in 

Equity Shares 

One �me Rs. 46,11,650 10th
 June 

2020 

 

6. PT eMudhra 

Technologies

Indonesia  

Investment in 

Equity Shares 

One �me Rs.1,09,04,380 10th
 June 

2020 

 

 

-

-

-

-
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2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transac�ons at arm’s length basis



For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Of eMudhra Limited

V Srinivasan 

Director     

DIN: 00640646    

Venu Madhava

Director

DIN: 06748204 

Date: May 21, 2021
Place: Bangalore

Sd:/- Sd:/-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of eMudhra Limited 

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of eMudhra Limited (hereina�er referred to 
as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its subsidiaries together 
referred to as “the Group”) which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and 
the consolidated statement of profit and loss, and the consolidated statement of cash flow for the 
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of signifi-

cant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as “Consolidated 
Financial Statements” ). We have not audited the financial statements of four subsidiaries of the 
company (eMudhra MU Limited, eMudhra PTE Ltd, eMudhra INC, eMudhra DMCC and eMudhra BV, 
hereina�er referred to as foreign subsidiaries).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng 
principles generally accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs (financial posi�on) of the 
Company as at March 31, 2021, and its consolidated profit, and its consolidated cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Char-

tered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion.

Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa-

�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Board’s Report including 
Annexures thereto, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

   UDIN: 21239986AAAAAQ9342 
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In connec�on with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent 
with financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit. 

Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the prepara�on of these Consolidated financial statements that give a true 
and fair view of the consolidated state of affairs (financial posi�on), consolidated financial perfor-

mance and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accoun�ng principles gener-

ally accepted in India, including the Accoun�ng Standards specified under sec�on 133 of the Act, read 
with relevant rules issued there under. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the 
Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of 
appropriate implementa�on and maintenance of accoun�ng policies; making judgments and 
es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accoun�ng unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease opera�ons, 
or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

Those Board of Directors included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing financial repor�ng 
process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial state-

ments as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

We have not audited the financial statements of eMudhra MU Limited (hereina�er referred as foreign 
subsidiary) whose financial statements reflect a total revenue of Rs.5.81 lakhs in the consolidated 
revenue. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by management 
and have been cer�fied by the management and our opinion, in so far as it relates to amounts includ-

ed in respect of subsidiary solely on the management cer�fied financial statements.
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We have not audited the financial statements of eMudhra DMCC (hereina�er referred as foreign 
subsidiary) whose financial statements reflect a total revenue of Rs. 2,520.62 lakhs in the consolidat-
ed revenue. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by management 
and have been cer�fied by the management and our opinion, in so far as it relates to amounts includ-

ed in respect of subsidiary solely on the management cer�fied financial statements.

We have not audited the financial statements of eMudhra PTE Ltd (hereina�er referred as foreign 
subsidiary) whose financial statements reflect a total revenue of Rs. 3.74 lakhs in the consolidated 
revenue. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by management 
and have been cer�fied by the management and our opinion, in so far as it relates to amounts includ-

ed in respect of subsidiary solely on the management cer�fied financial statements.

We have not audited the financial statements of eMudhra INC (hereina�er referred as foreign subsidi-
ary) whose financial statements reflect a total revenue of Rs. 148 lakhs in the consolidated revenue. 
These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by management and have 
been cer�fied by the management and our opinion, in so far as it relates to amounts included in 
respect of subsidiary solely on the management cer�fied financial statements.

We have not audited the financial statements of eMudhra BV (hereina�er referred as foreign subsidi-
ary) whose financial statements reflect a total revenue of Rs. 6.50 lakhs in the consolidated revenue. 
These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by management and have 
been cer�fied by the management and our opinion, in so far as it relates to amounts included in 
respect of subsidiary solely on the management cer�fied financial statements.

However, the financial statements of Indian subsidiaries have been audited by us for the year ended 
31-03-2021.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain profes-

sional skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng 
a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls in place 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 
scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we iden�fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rele-

vant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships 
and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applica-

ble, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowl-
edge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law rela�ng to prepara�on of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examina�on of those books.

c. The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidat-
ed Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Stan-

dards specified under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.

e. On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors of Holding company and reports of statutory auditors of 
subsidiary companies, none of the directors of the group is disqualified as on 31st March, 2021 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Group 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”

g. With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on 
and according to the explana�ons given to us: 

i. The Consolidated financial statements disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial 
posi�on in its financial statements – Refer Note no.22 to the financial statements.

ii.  The Group did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund by the Company.

 

 

Place: Bangalore 

 

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates 

Date: 21-05-2021 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registra�on No: 001997S 

  

 

 

  

 Sumith Rathi 

 Partner 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Membership No: 239986 

Sd:/-
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ANNEXURE “A“ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Statements under Clause (i) of sub sec�on 
(3) of sec�on 143 of the Act.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of eMudhra Limited (hereinaf-
ter referred as the “Holding Company“) and its subsidiaries (Holding company and its subsidiaries 
together referred to as “the Group”) as of March 31, 2021, in conjunc�on with our audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering 
the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Finan-

cial Controls over Financial repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 
These responsibili�es include the design, implemena�on and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on 
and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the 
�mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on 
Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on of 143 (10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Stan-

dards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial repor�ng.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng 

A company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reason-

able assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and prepara�on of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company’s 
internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that:

i. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the Company;

ii. Provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of manage-

ment and directors of the Company; and 

iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, 
use, or disposi�on of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial state-

ments.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng   

Because of the inherent limita�ons of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng 
effec�vely as at March 31, 2021, based on “the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria estab-

lished by the company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guid-

ance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India”.

 

Place: Bangalore 

 

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates 

Date: 21-05-2021 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registra�on No: 001997S 

  

 

 

  

 

Sumith Rathi 

 

Partner 

 

 

Membership No: 239986 

Sd:/-
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For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

eMudhra Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Amount in INR

Year ended 

March 31, 2021

Year ended 

March 31, 2020
Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es

Profit before tax 30,92,33,378                    25,24,37,914        

Adjustments for :
Deprecia�on 8,27,66,971                      8,60,01,541          

Interest income (10,28,955)                        (5,11,163)              

Other income -                                        (28,39,373)            

Other Ince (1,76,650)                           -                          

Interest expenses 60,25,148                          64,44,856              

Opera�ng profit before working capital changes 39,68,19,892                    34,15,33,774        

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 75,01,936                          (1,18,32,652)        

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 8,34,09,528                      (2,31,26,985)        

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances (3,55,94,664)                     (9,89,19,171)        

Increase/ (decrease) in current liabili�es 3,01,28,830                      4,39,23,297          

Cash generated from opera�ons 48,22,65,522                    25,15,78,262        

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (5,21,52,000)                     (4,13,68,327)        

Net cash from opera�ng ac�vi�es 43,01,13,522                    21,02,09,935        

Cash flow from inves�ng ac�vi�es

Purchase of  tangible/intangible assets (21,31,90,733)                  (23,10,76,035)      

Minority brought on account of consolida�on (24,50,123)                        (59,03,234)            

Retained earnings brought on account of consolida�on (3,00,93,068)                     (5,30,18,240)        

Goodwill on consolida�on 1,08,68,427                      (62,26,258)            

Investment in equity/preference shares (13,77,08,289)                  -                          

Other income -                                       28,39,373              

Interest/other received 12,05,605                          5,11,163                

Net cash from / (used in) inves�ng ac�vi�es (37,13,68,181)                  (29,28,73,231)      

Cash flow from financing ac�vi�es
Receipt (payment) of long term borrowing 3,72,24,973                      10,12,17,592        
Redemp�on of preference share capital (7,50,00,000)                     -                          

Dividend paid including dividend distribu�on tax (65,64,375)                        (60,08,008)            

Foreign Exchange Movement on account of consolida�on 1,17,24,589                      14,05,923              

Proceeds (repayment) from short term borrowings (1,95,76,682)                     6,05,56,591          

Interest  paid (60,25,148)                        (64,44,856)            

Net cash from / (used in) financing ac�vi�es (5,82,16,643)                     15,07,27,243        

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,28,698                            6,80,63,947          

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 9,13,24,029                      2,32,60,082          

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 9,18,52,727                      9,13,24,029          

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 1,72,787                            2,74,838                

Balance with banks

In current accounts 3,69,74,941                      9,10,49,191          

Deposit accounts 5,47,05,000                      -                          

Total 9,18,52,728                      9,13,24,029          

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
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eMudhra Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Amount in INR

Note no
As at

March 31,2021
As at

March 31,2020
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholder's Funds

064,89,86,343latipac erahS          51,18,98,460         
Reserves and surplus 4 60,25,00,052         43,60,03,198         
Minority Interest             7,97,75,985             2,26,34,449 

Non-current liabili�es

Long-term borrowings 5 22,45,27,349         18,73,02,377         

Other long-term liabili�es 6 2,33,91,490           1,10,25,860           

Deferred tax liabili�es (net) 7 1,36,40,023           75,80,013              

Long- term provisions 8 2,49,16,753           1,60,24,287           

Current liabili�es

930,92,28,219sgniworrob mret-trohS          14,78,05,721         

607,08,94,301selbayap edarT            7,46,49,806           

129,38,09,6111seitilibail tnerruc rehtO          12,54,43,828         

308,56,4821snoisivorp mret-trohS               35,66,063              

Total 1,74,64,09,581     1,54,39,34,062     

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed assets

   Tangible assets 13          65,71,15,828          15,00,36,757 

   Intangible assets 14          40,21,93,680          41,91,31,274 

   Tangible assets under development             3,74,00,370          38,48,25,445 

   Intangible asset under development                75,76,122             1,98,68,765 

Goodwill on consolida�on                               -               1,08,68,427 

Non-current investments 15          13,92,08,289                15,00,000 

Long term loans and advances 16 6,81,34,007           7,29,76,394           

Current Assets

366,53,1771seirotnevnI               1,46,37,599           

305,38,19,4181selbaviecer edarT          23,25,93,031         

827,25,81,991stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC            9,13,24,029           

Short-term loans and advances 20 18,50,65,474         14,52,73,365         

819,34,5112stessa tnerruc rehtO               8,98,976                 

Total 1,74,64,09,581     1,54,39,34,062     

83 & 1stnuocca ot seton rehtO
Summary of significant accoun�ng policies 2

22seitilibail tnegnitnoC

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

Amount in INR

Note no

For the Year 

ended

March 31, 2021

For the Year 

ended

March 31, 2020
INCOME

Revenue from opera�ons 1,31,49,74,359    1,16,42,36,682    

Other income 23 13,28,706              33,50,537              

Total revenue 1,31,63,03,065    1,16,75,87,219    

EXPENSES

Opera�ng expenses 24 12,06,17,858        12,48,55,055        

Purchases of stock-in-trade 25 17,95,07,530        25,87,89,532        

Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 26 75,01,936              (1,18,32,652)        

Employee benefit expense 27 42,07,53,531        28,58,62,760        

Financial costs 28 60,25,148              64,44,856              

Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense 29 8,27,66,971          8,60,01,541          

Other expenses 30 18,98,96,713        16,50,28,213        

Total Expense 1,00,70,69,687    91,51,49,305        

Profit(loss) before tax 30,92,33,378        25,24,37,914        

Tax Expense:
Current tax 5,21,52,000          4,13,68,327          

Deferred tax 60,60,010              44,77,879              

Profit/(loss)  a�er tax 25,10,21,368        20,65,91,707        

Dividend paid on preference shares 65,64,375              60,08,008              

Profit/(loss) for the year 24,44,56,993        20,05,83,699        

Profit(loss) for the year- Minority interest 5,95,91,658          2,85,37,684          

Profit(loss) for the year- a�ributable to eMudhra Limited
18,48,65,335        17,20,46,016        

Earnings per equity share(Nominal value of Rs.5 per share) 31
Basic 3.58                        2.94                        

Diluted 3.58                        2.94                        

Other notes to accounts 1
Summary of significant accoun�ng policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General Informa�on

eMudhra Limited is a public limited company engaged in providing various solu�ons and services like 
digital signatures, authen�ca�on solu�ons, paperless office solu�ons and other solu�ons around PKI 
technology. eMudhra is a licensed cer�fying authority under the Informa�on Technology Act,2000. 

Founded in 2008 from the seed of digital signatures, eMudhra has since grown to establish strong 
roots in solu�ons providing security to enterprises and end consumer for online transac�ons. 
eMudhra strives to stay relevant in the PKI and online security space by op�mizing a market-based 
approach to drive solu�ons that address our customers’ financial and statutory needs. eMudhra’s 
products include digital signature cer�ficates, authen�ca�on solu�ons, paperless office solu�ons, 
Cer�fying Authority solu�ons, solu�ons for securing data at rest and data in transit, solu�ons for 
Internet of Things(IoT), etc.

The consolidated financial statement of eMudhra Limited represent the financials of eMudhra Ltd 
with its foreign subsidiaries, eMudhra (MU) Ltd, eMudhra PTE Ltd, eMudhra INC, eMudhra DMCC, 
eMudhra B.V and Indian subsidiaries, eMudhra Technologies Limited and eMudhra Consumer Services 
Limited.

All the  foreign subsidiaries have been established to provide eMudhra’s products and services in 
respec�ve territories apart from providing their own products/ services or any other third party 
products.  eMudhra Consumer services Limited  owns and develops IP related to paperless office 
solu�on ( emSigner) and eMudhra Technologies Limited has set up emSign PKI for issuance of various 
types of digital cer�ficates including SSL globally. 

2. Summary of Significant Accoun�ng Policies
  

I. Basis of Prepara�on of Accounts

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accoun�ng 
principles in India under the historical cost conven�on on accrual basis, the exis�ng Accoun�ng 
Standards no�fied under the Companies Act, 2013 shall con�nue to apply. Consequently, these 
financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accoun�ng stan-

dards no�fied under Sec�on 211(3C) [Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2014, as amended] 
and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

II. Use of Es�mates

The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accoun�ng principles in 
India requires management to make es�mates, judgements and assump�ons that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabili�es and the disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es on the date of the financial 
statements. The applica�on of accoun�ng policies that require cri�cal accoun�ng policies that require 
cri�cal accoun�ng es�mates, judgements and the use of assump�ons in these financial statements 
and therefore actual results could differ from those es�mates. Any revision to accoun�ng es�mates is 
recognised prospec�vely in current and future periods.

The company has considered the possible effects that may arise from the pandemic rela�ng to 
COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial 
statements may differ from that es�mated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.
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III. Tangible Assets

Tangible assets are stated at acquisi�on cost, net of accumulated deprecia�on and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any, except in case of land. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of fixed 
asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the exis�ng asset 
beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. The company capitalises all costs rela�ng to 
the acquisi�on, installa�on and construc�on of fixed assets, up to the date when the assets are ready 
for commercial use.

Items of fixed assets that have been re�red from ac�ve use and are held for disposal are stated at 
the lower of their net book value and net realizable value and are shown separately in the financial 
statements. Any expected loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, losses arising from 
the re�rement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried at cost 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Deprecia�on on addi�ons/ dele�ons to fixed assets is calculated on pro-rata basis from/upto the 
date of such addi�ons/ dele�ons. The Company provides deprecia�on on straight-line basis method 
at the rates specified under Schedule II to the Act. However, the leasehold improvements are depre-

ciated at lower of useful life men�oned in schedule II of the above said act or over the lease period.

IV. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisi�on cost, net of accumulated amor�za�on and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amor�sed on straight-line basis over a period of 10 
years, based on management es�mate. The amor�za�on period and the amor�za�on method are 
reviewed at the end of each financial year.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. So�ware product development costs are expensed as 
incurred unless technical and commercial feasibility of the project is demonstrated, future economic 
benefits are probable, the company has an inten�on and ability to complete and use or sell the 
so�ware and the costs can be measured reliably. The cost which can be capitalized include the cost 
of material, direct labour and overhead costs that are directly a�ributable to preparing the assets for 
the intended use.

V. Investments

Long term investments are carried at cost and necessary provisions are made to recognize any 
decline, other than temporary, in the value of such investments.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value and provision is made to recognize 
any decline in the carrying value.

VI. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, computed on a FIFO basis and es�mated net realizable 
value.
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VII. Revenue Recogni�on

The company uses the following methods while recognizing revenue for any given period 

1. Percentage-of-comple�on method in accoun�ng for its fixed price assignments
2. Digital signature related revenue is accounted based on billing
3. Revenue from traded materials are accounted on the basis of delivery
4. The prepaid revenues are amor�sed in the same financial year, if the value is less than or equal to 
Rs.1,000,000

VIII. Other Income

Interest: Interest income is recognised on a �me propor�on basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the rate applicable.

IX. Foreign Currency Transac�ons

Ini�al Recogni�on

On ini�al recogni�on, all foreign currency transac�ons are recorded by applying to the foreign curren-

cy amount the exchange rate between the repor�ng currency and the foreign currency at the date of 
the transac�on.

Subsequent Recogni�on

As at the repor�ng date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominat-
ed in a foreign currency is reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transac�on. All 
non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valua�on denominated in a 
foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were deter-

mined.

All monetary assets and liabili�es in foreign currency are restated at the end of accoun�ng period. 
With respect to long-term foreign currency monetary items, from April 1, 2011 onwards, the Compa-

ny has adopted the following policy:

• Foreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable asset, is adjusted in the cost of the depre-

ciable asset, which would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset. 

• In other cases, the foreign exchange difference is accumulated in a Foreign Currency Monetary Item 
Transla�on Difference Account, and amor�sed over the balance period of such long-term asset/ 
liability. 

A monetary asset or liability is termed as a long-term foreign currency monetary item, if the asset or 
liability is expressed in a foreign currency and has a term of 12 months or more at the date of origina-

�on of the asset or liability.

Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.
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In Respect of Foreign Subsidiary 

All the assets and liabili�es, both monetary and non-monetary items, are translated into the repor�ng       
currency at the exchange rate in effect at March 31, 2021 and income and expense items are translat-
ed at the average rate applicable for the year ended March 31, 2021. 

X. Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribu�on Plan
 

Contribu�on towards provident fund and pension scheme for employees is made to the regulatory 
authori�es which are recognised by the Income Tax Authori�es and administered through appropriate 
authori�es, where the Company has no further obliga�ons. Such benefits are classified as Defined 
Contribu�on Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obliga�ons, apart from the contri-
bu�ons made on a monthly basis.

(b) Defined Benefit Plan
 

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible 
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump 
sum payment to vested employees at re�rement, death, incapacita�on or termina�on of employ-

ment, of an amount based on the respec�ve employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The 
Company’s liability is actuarially determined by an independent actuary (using the Projected Unit 
Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

(c) Other Employee Benefits
     

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or 
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. 
The obliga�on towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumula�ng compensated 
absences as the addi�onal amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused en�tlement as at the 
year end.
 

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 
months from the end of the year are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s 
liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. 
Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they 
arise.

XI. Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc-

�on of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substan�al period of �me to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, un�l such �me as the 
assets are substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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XII.  Current and Deferred Tax

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determina-

�on of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be 
paid to the tax authori�es in accordance with the taxa�on laws prevailing in the respec�ve jurisdic-

�ons.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the �ming differences, subject to the considera�on of prudence in 
respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the 
extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are mea-

sured using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the 
Balance Sheet date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax 
assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabili�es are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le the asset and the liability on a net 
basis. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabili�es are offset when there is a legally enforceable 
right to set off assets against liabili�es represen�ng current tax and where the deferred tax assets 
and the deferred tax liabili�es relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxa�on laws.

Minimum Alterna�ve Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is 
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such 
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is 
wri�en down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company 
will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

XIII. Provisions and Con�ngent Liabili�es

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obliga�on as a result of a past event, it 
is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the 
obliga�on and there is a reliable es�mate of the amount of the obliga�on. Provisions are measured 
at the best es�mate of the expenditure required to se�le the present obliga�on at the Balance Sheet 
date and are not discounted to its present value.

Con�ngent Liabili�es: Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed when there is a possible obliga�on arising 
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present 
obliga�on that  arises from past events where it is either not probable that an ou�low of resources 
will be required to se�le or a reliable es�mate of the amount cannot be made.

XIV. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with 
banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturi�es of three months or less.
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XV.  Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period a�ributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the net profit for the period 
a�er deduc�ng preference dividends and any a�ributable tax thereto for the period. The weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is 
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of poten�al equity shares that 
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. 
For the purpose of calcula�ng diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period a�ribut-
able to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 
period is adjusted for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares.

XVI. Impairment of Assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indica�on that an asset 
(tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest 
iden�fiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from con�nuing use that are largely indepen-

dent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash genera�ng unit. 
If any such indica�on exists, an es�mate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash genera�ng unit 
is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are wri�en down to the 
recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash genera�ng unit’s net selling 
price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of es�mated future cash flows expected to 
arise from the con�nuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment 
is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indica�on that an impairment loss 
recognized for an asset in prior accoun�ng periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Share capital (Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

As at

Note no
As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

Authorised

12,30,00,000 (2020:12,30,00,000) equity shares of Rs.5 each 61,50,00,000                     61,50,00,000          

 2,50,00,000 (2020: 2,50,00,000)  redeemable preference shares of Rs.10 each                       25,00,00,000             25,00,00,000 

86,50,00,000                     86,50,00,000          

Issued

7,01,79,692 (2020:7,01,79,692) equity shares of Rs.5 each                       35,08,98,460             35,08,98,460 

86,00,000 (2020: 1,61,00,000) Preference shares of Rs.10 each                         8,60,00,000             16,10,00,000 

Subscribed & Paid - up

7,01,79,692 (2020:7,01,79,692) equity shares of Rs.5 each                       35,08,98,460             35,08,98,460 

86,00,000 (2020: 1,61,00,000) Preference shares of Rs.10 each                         8,60,00,000             16,10,00,000 

43,68,98,460                     51,18,98,460          

(a) Reconcilia�on of number of shares

Equity Shares:

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,01,79,692         35,08,98,460                     7,01,79,692        35,08,98,460          

Balance at the end of the year 7,01,79,692         35,08,98,460                     7,01,79,692        35,08,98,460          

Preference Shares:

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,61,00,000         16,10,00,000                     1,61,00,000        16,10,00,000          

Less: Redeemed during the year               75,00,000                         7,50,00,000                             -                                    -   

Balance at the end of the year 86,00,000             8,60,00,000                       1,61,00,000        16,10,00,000          

(b) Rights, preferences and restric�ons a�ached to shares

Equity shares

Preference shares

(d)Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the 

aggregate shares in the company 

As at

March 31,2021
% 

As at

March 31,2020
% 

Equity Shares: 

V Srinivasan 2,79,73,964         40% 2,79,73,964        40%

Taarav Pte Ltd 1,83,59,123         26% 1,83,59,123        26%

Lakshmi Kaushik 62,01,466             9% 62,01,466            9%

Arvind Srinivasan 66,36,515             9% 66,36,515            9%

eMudhra Employees Stock Op�on Trust 60,57,801             9% 61,32,801            9%

Preference Shares:  

3i Infotech Limited -                         0% 75,00,000            47%

V Srinivasan 66,53,438             77% 53,55,731            33%

Mythili Srinivasan -                         0% 12,97,707            8%

Lakshmi Kaushik 9,73,281               11% -                        0%

Aishwarya Arvind 9,73,281               11% -                        0%

Kaushik Srinivasan -                         0% 9,73,281              6%

Arvind Srinivasan -                         0% 9,73,281              6%

Equity shares :The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.5 per share. Each shareholder is  eligible for  one vote per share held. In the event of 

l iquida�on, the equity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company a�er distribu�on of all  preferen�al amounts in propor�on to their share 

86,00,000 (2020:1,61,00,000) preference share of Rs.10 each. These shares are 3% cumula�ve non conver�ble preference shares of Rs.10 each.During the year, the company has 

redeemed 75,00,000 preference shares issued to M/s 3i Infotech Limited at the rate Rs.10 per share.
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in INR

srlaucitraPon etoN
As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

4 Reserves and surplus

Capital Reserve

-raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB                           -                          

942,20,09,1noitadilosnoc  fo tnuocca nO :ddA -                                     

Balance as at the  end of the year 1,90,02,249 -                                     

Securi�es Premium
934,71,6raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB -                                          

-snoitcasnarT :ddA                           6,17,439                

Balance as at the  end of the year 6,17,439                6,17,439                

Capital redemp�on reserve

000,00,09,8ecnalab gninepO            8,90,00,000           

000,00,05,7raey eht gnirud derrefsnart :ddA -                                     

000,00,04,61raey eht fo dne  eht ta sa ecnalaB         8,90,00,000           

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

043,67,80,34raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB          25,88,30,324         

533,56,84,81doirep/raey eht rof )ssoL( /tiforP          17,20,46,016         

-noitamaglama fo tnuocca no drawrof thguorb ticifeD                           -                          

)000,00,05,7(evreser noitpmeder latipac ot refsnarT -                                    

576,14,70,45raey eht fo dne  eht ta sa ecnalaB         43,08,76,340        

)185,09,44,8(ecnalaB gninepO          (3,22,60,825)         

)713,59,09,4(noitadilosnoc no sgninrae deniateR           (5,36,35,679)          

985,42,71,1tnemtsujda xeroF            14,05,923              

Profit/ (Loss) for the year on account of consolida�on

(12,18,61,311)       (8,44,90,581)         

60,25,00,052        43,60,03,198        

5 Long-term borrowings

Secured  term loans:

943,72,54,22knaB morF          18,73,02,377         

22,45,27,349        18,73,02,377        

Nature  of security and  terms of  repayment for secured  borrowings:

tnemyapeR fo smreTytiruces fo erutaN

During the year, our banker, Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, has sanc�oned 
addi�onal loan under ECLGS scheme amoun�ng to Rs.55,800,000/-  towards 
construc�on of Digital Signature Compus building in KIADB IT Park, Devenahalli, 
Bangalore, out of which en�re amount  has been u�lised �ll March 2021.

 1.Primary Security:First and exclusive charge on all exis�ng and future  current 

assets,movable assets,movable fixed assets,tangible and intangible assets of the 

borrower

2. Collateral Security: Memorandum of deposit of �tle deeds of lease hold property 

(leased for 99 years) KIADB land located at plot no 12-P1-A & 12-P1-B of Bangaluru 

Industrial area in Sy No 95/P & 7 ( Block no 21, 22 & 24) of B K Palya village, Jala 

Hobli, Bangalore North taluk, Bengaluru Urban Dist measuring land 3 acres standing 

in the name of the company. Property presently under construc�on. 
3. Collatral Security:  Residen�al flat in "Cedar grove Oasis" apartment, property 

no.96,Katha no 1374/533/21,Sy.no.25/1,situated at Kaikondanahalli Village,Varthur 

Village,Bangalore standing in the name of M/s.Cedar Grove Real Estate Private 

Limited.

4. Collatral Security:  Vacant land situated at, property no.95(old no.15),New 

Katha no 1368/527/15,old Katha no.527, Sy.no.25/1,situated at Kaikondanahalli 

Village,Varthur Village,Bangalore standing in the name of Mr.V.Srinvasan.

Term loan 1(Rs.150,000,000):  The 

repayment started from June 2019 with a 

monthly instalment of Rs.26,07,387 for a 

period of 81 months.Company has made 

a repayment of Rs.259,95,117 �ll March 

2021 towards the principal.The unu�lised 

amount lapsed is Rs.11,672

Term loan 2(Rs.100,000,000): 

The repayment from June 2020 with a 

monthly instalment of Rs.24,63,424 for a 

period of 48 months. Company has made 

a repayment of Rs.70,32,583 �ll March 

2021 towards the principal. The unu�lised 

amount lapsed is Rs.913,346.

Term loan 3(Rs.55,800,000): This facility 

currently under moratorium and shall 

start the repayment from December 

2021  with a monthly instalment of 

Rs.17,06,743 for a period of 48 

months[including moratorium period]. 

Interest Rate: repo rate + Spread of 4.95%
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in INR

srlaucitraPon etoN
As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

6 Other long-term liabili�es

Trade deposits 25,25,000              25,25,000              

Lease liabili�es[ refer note 37] 1,18,51,758 -                                     

Income received in advance 90,14,732              85,00,860              

2,33,91,490           1,10,25,860           

7 Deferred tax liabili�es (net)

Deferred tax on account of:

Deprecia�on  1,36,40,023           75,80,013              

1,36,40,023           75,80,013              

8 Long- term provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

(refer note 33 and 33.1)

044,68,31,2 ytiutarg rof noisivorP            1,26,57,759           

313,03,53secnesba detasnepmoc rof noisivorP               33,66,528              

2,49,16,753           1,60,24,287           

9 Short-term borrowings

Unsecured

388,55,57,3rotcerid morF            1,97,04,523           

-esirpretne detaicossa morF                           2,16,00,000           

Secured

From scheduled banks*

422,35,33,4naol latipac gnikroW            7,92,29,064           

239,91,37,4)5 eton refer(naol mret fo ytirutam tnerruC            2,72,72,135           

12,82,29,039        14,78,05,721        

10 Trade payables

Total  outstanding  dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 36) 1,92,86,201           

Total  outstanding  dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,56,94,505           7,46,49,806           

3,49,80,706           7,46,49,806           

11 Other current liabili�es

Advance from Customers 15,58,670              16,32,914              

728,13,16srotiderc latipaC               70,26,374              

007,19,91,1ecnavda ni deviecer emocnI            1,36,33,689           

Statutory dues (Including provident fund and tax deducted at source) 2,57,47,825           3,37,90,660           

DSC Portal deposit 91,12,334              1,03,10,767           

765,54,01,3elbayap stifeneb eeyolpmE            3,25,57,949           

Lease liabili�es[ refer note 37] 54,70,042              

945,47,36)ten(esirpretne detaicossa ot euD               8,89,473                

Income tax provision (net of TDS) 3,56,15,162 -                                     

Other payables towards contractual obliga�ons 3,60,36,245           2,56,02,002           

16,90,83,921        12,54,43,828        

12 Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

(refer note 33 and 33.1)

346,42,52ytiutarg rof noisivorP               20,00,000              

061,14,95secnesba detasnepmoc rof noisivorP               15,66,063              

84,65,803              35,66,063              

* The company has exisitng working capital facility from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited with a limit of Rs.80,000,000 and has

availed addi�onal facility from ICICI Bank Limited with a limit of Rs.38,000,000. These loans are repayable on demand.

 Nature of Security:

1. Primary Security: Secured against receivables and inventory of the company.

2. Collateral Security: a) Proposed memorandum of deposit of  �tle deeds of lease hold property (leased for 99 years) KIADB

land located at plot no 12-P1-A & 12-P1-B of Bengaluru Industrial area in Sy No 95/P & 7 ( Block no 21, 22 & 24) of B K Palya

village, Jala Hobli, Bangalore North taluk, Bengaluru Urban Dist measuring land 3 acres standing in the name of the company.

(b) Residen�al flat in "Cedar grove Oasis" apartment, property no.96, Katha no 1374/533/21,Sy.no.25/1,situated at

Kaikondanahalli Village, Varthur Village, Bangalore standing in the name of M/s.Cedar Grove Real Estate Private Limited.

(c)Vacant land situated at, property no.95(old no.15), New Katha no 1368/527/15, old Katha no.527, Sy.no.25/1,situated at

Kaikondanahalli Village, Varthur Village, Bangalore standing in the name of Mr.V.Srinvasan.
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in INR

Note Par�cualrs

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

15 Non-current investments

Quoted instruments:- 

Investment In Mutual Fund:

Investment In mutual fund 6,23,100                15,00,000              

(1,50,000 (2019: 15,00,00) units of Canara robeco protec�on 

oriented fund - regular growth plan at par value of Rs.10 each)

Investment in assoicate companies by: -                          -                          

eMudhra Limited

(147,500[2020:NIL] equity shares of USD 1 each per share 1,09,04,380          -                          

PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia

eMudhra DMCC

(1,47,500[2020:NIL] equity shares of USD 1 each per share 1,11,64,721          -                          

1,600,000[2020: NIL] preference shares of USD 1 each 11,65,16,088        -                          

13,92,08,289        15,00,000              

16 Long term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

Capital advances -                          

Deposits:

Security deposits 2,16,04,164          1,77,58,958          

Tender deposits 9,67,000                13,75,276              

2,25,71,164          1,91,34,234          

Other loans and advances

Income Tax (Net of provisions) 78,84,750              1,60,61,926          

MAT Credit En�tlement 3,57,100                

Other advances -                          4,57,706                

82,41,850              1,65,19,632          

Other non current assets

Others

Advances to eMudhra employees stock op�on trust 3,03,59,003          3,06,84,003          

Long term deposits with bank with maturity period more than 

12 months [Refer note below]

69,61,990              66,38,525              

3,73,20,993          3,73,22,528          

6,81,34,007          7,29,76,394          

Note: Rs.69,61,990 held as lien by banks against bank guarantees.

17 Inventories

Details of stock- in- trade

Crypto token 30,04,165              63,74,602              

SSL Cer�ficates 41,31,498              82,62,997              

71,35,663              1,46,37,599          

18 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good

From Unrealted par�es

Outstanding for a period exceeding  six months from the date 

they are  due for payment

           2,43,92,540 3,30,59,022          

Others 12,47,90,963        19,95,34,009        

14,91,83,503        23,25,93,031        
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in INR

Note Par�cualrs As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1,72,787                2,74,838                

Bank Balances :

In fixed deposits ( refer below note) 5,47,05,000          

In current accounts 3,69,74,941          9,10,49,191          

9,18,52,728          9,13,24,029          

20 Short-term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

Other advances 49,42,103              56,64,316              

Unbilled revenue 13,75,03,789        10,52,32,497        

Capital advances 1,15,51,211          16,630                    

Balances with  government authori�es 58,26,049              64,00,893              

Prepaid expenses 2,52,42,322          2,79,59,029          

18,50,65,474        14,52,73,365        

21 Other current assets

Interest accrued on fixed deposit 15,43,918              8,98,976                

15,43,918              8,98,976                

Note: Deposit of Rs.14,705,000 held as lien by banks against bank guarantees and 

another deposit of Rs.40,000,000 is held as lien by bank against overdra� facility.
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in INR

Note No Par�cualrs As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

22 Con�ngent liabili�es

Bank guarantees (secured against fixed deposits of Rs.21,666,990) 2,57,63,773           1,01,34,493                     

Income tax Appeal(refer note (a) below) 3,22,90,170           1,51,50,000                     

2,57,63,773           1,01,34,493                     

Note:

(a)The company has filed write pe��on (WP 52898/2019) which is pending with Honourable High Court of

Karnataka against Dy commissioner of Income Tax Circle2(1)(2), Bangalore against their Assessment Order for

the AY 2012-13 to levy income tax under sec�on 143 r.w.s. 147 of Income tax act,1961.

(b) The company has 4 legal cases against the company in various courts in the country. In all these cases, we

do not forsee any financial implica�on.

(c) The company has filed one case against M/s Suvidhaa Infoserve Private Limited, which is for sough�ng

compensa�on  to recover the losses suffered by the company on account of breach of terms of the agreement 

by the  defendant. The compensa�on sought in this case is Rs.500,000,000.

(d) The proposed dividend for the financial year 2021 is  Rs.2,580,000 [2020:4,830,000].
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in INR

Note Par�cualrs For the Year 

ended

March 31, 2021

For the Year 

ended

March 31, 2020

23 Other income

Interest Income 10,28,955              5,11,163                

Other income 1,76,650                28,39,373              

Provisions no longer required wri�en back 1,23,101                -                          

Foreign exchange gain -                          -                          

Total 13,28,706              33,50,537              

24 Opera�ng expenses
Distributor commission 7,16,58,637          5,36,40,195          

DSC collec�on and verifica�on charges -                          92,67,164              

Other direct opera�ng expenses 4,68,31,857          6,04,73,836          

Licence fee expenses -                          -                          

Payment gateway charges 43,28,228              35,22,470              

Postage and courier charges 61,70,357              40,45,291              

Foreign exchange Loss (83,71,221)            (60,93,902)            

12,06,17,858        12,48,55,055        

25 Purchases of stock-in-trade

Purchase of hardware's 17,95,07,530        22,11,13,957        

SSL Cer�ficates -                          3,76,75,575          

17,95,07,530        25,87,89,532        

26 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Finished Goods:

 Opening stock:

Crypto token 63,74,602              28,04,948              

SSL Cer�ficates 82,62,997              -                          

1,46,37,599          28,04,948              

 Closing stock:

Crypto token 30,04,165              63,74,602              

SSL Cer�ficates 41,31,498              82,62,997              

 Closing stock 71,35,663              1,46,37,599          

Total 75,01,936              (1,18,32,652)        

27 Employee benefit expense

Salary and allowances to employees 38,31,97,142        26,30,42,508        

Contribu�on towards employee funds 1,21,91,977          92,48,843              

Staff welfare expenses 2,53,64,412          1,35,71,409          

Total 42,07,53,531        28,58,62,760        

28 Financial costs

Interest expense 60,25,148              64,44,856              

Total 60,25,148              64,44,856              

29 Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense

Amor�za�on on intangible assets 6,90,48,997          7,29,17,249          

Deprecia�on on tangible assets 1,37,17,974          1,30,84,292          

Total 8,27,66,971          8,60,01,541          
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30 Other expenses

Office maintenance expense 89,49,094              88,62,293              

Electricity expense 71,25,279              89,00,490              

Business promo�on and adver�sement 2,59,65,059          2,75,83,411          

Miscellaneous expense 27,13,811              19,19,433              

Communica�on expenses 1,05,52,802          97,46,896              

Insurance expenses 21,25,341              15,21,813              

Informa�on technology expenses 62,66,657              34,16,969              

Legal and professional expenses 6,35,37,580          3,02,78,615          

Auditors' remunera�on:

    - Statutory audit fee 7,00,000                7,00,000                

    -Other services 2,10,000                1,89,201                

    -Other consultancy services -                          1,50,000                

Membership charges 18,21,787              8,70,337                

Bad Debts -                          -                          

Mee�ng and conference expenses -                          4,99,527                

Prin�ng and sta�onary 13,19,007              41,81,999              

Fees rates and taxes 81,64,029              24,07,736              

Recruitment and training expenses 22,34,864              10,60,110              

Repair and maintenance 29,37,318              36,55,045              

Travelling, boarding and lodging expenses 31,43,546              2,54,84,932          

Redemp�on Premium -                          

Local conveyance 5,32,960                26,89,385              

Rent 3,94,19,231          2,90,20,592          

Contribu�on for corporate social responsibility expenses (Refer Note No 40) 21,78,348              18,89,429              

Total 18,98,96,713        16,50,28,213        

eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Amount in INR

Note No Par�cualrs As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

Note no Par�culars

For the Year ended

March 31, 2021

For the Year ended

March 31, 2020

31 Earnings per share

Basic:

863,12,01,52Axat retfa tiforP 707,19,56,02                                     

Weighted average number of shares outstanding B 7,01,79,692 7,01,79,692

49.285.3B/ASPE  cisaB

Diluted

863,12,01,52Axat retfa tiforP 707,19,56,02                                     

Weighted average number of shares outstanding B 7,01,79,692 296,97,10,7                                         

85.3B/ASPE  detuliD 49.2                                                                   

32 Foreign Exchange Earnings / Expenses*

Foreign exchange earned

Royalty,know-how,professional and cosnulta�on fee 2,36,69,579 923,66,29,3                                         

Foreign exchange used

Royalty,know-how,professional and cosnulta�on fee 1,80,02,345 690,43,22,1                                         

*these amounts are related to only Indian companies and doesn't include foreign subsidiaries.

94



eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

33 Disclosures under accoun�ng standard 15

a) Post Re�rement Benefit- Defined Contribu�on Plans

b) Post Re�rement Benefit- Defined Benefit Plan 

 For the Year ended

March 31, 2021 

 For the Year ended

March 31, 2020 

(i)  Present Value of Defined Benefit Obliga�on - Gratuity

846,85,61,2raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB 430,42,49,1                                              

128,98,34tsoc ecivres tnerruC 345,96,25                                                      

380,32,21tsoc tseretnI 490,28,31                                                      

429,87,24ssol/)niag( lairautcA )290,12,14(                                                    

)906,41,21(diap stifeneB )139,59,2(                                                    

768,53,30,3raey /doirep eht fo dne eht ta ecnalaB 846,85,61,2                                              

(ii) Fair value of Plan Assets

988,00,07raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB 758,20,94                                                      

879,70,5stessa nalp no nruter detcepxE 368,04,4                                                          

141,86,8noitubirtnoC 355,64,22                                                        

)247,86()ssol(/niag lairautcA )354,39,2(                                                          

)906,41,21(diap stifeneB )139,59,2(                                                    

756,39,07raey eht fo dne eht ta ecnalaB 988,00,07                                                    

(iii) Assets and liabili�es recognised in the Balance Sheet

768,53,30,3noitagilbo tifeneb denifed fo eulav tneserP 846,85,61,2                                              

756,39,07stessa nalp fo eulav tneserP 988,00,07                                                      

Amount recognised as assets/(liability) (2,32,42,210)                        (1,46,57,759)                    

Recognised under:

)012,24,21,2()8 etoN refeR( noisivorp mret gnoL )957,75,62,1(                                            

)000,00,02()21 etoN refeR( noisivorp mret trohS )000,00,02(                                                  

Total (2,32,42,210)                        (1,46,57,759)                    

(iv) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

128,98,34tsoc ecivres tnerruC 345,96,25                                                      

380,32,21tsoc tseretnI 490,28,31                                                      

)879,70,5(stessa nalp nruter detcepxE )368,04,4(                                                       

566,74,34ssol/)niag( lairautcA )046,72,83(                                                    

Total expenses 94,52,591                            23,83,134                        

The Company has recognised an amount of Rs.92,98,744 (2020: Rs. 80,72,561) as expenses under the defined contribu�on plans in the Statement of Profit
and Loss in respect of contribu�on to Provident Fund for the year ended March 31, 2021.

The Company makes provision for gratuity based on actuarial valua�on done on  projected unit credit method at each balance sheet date.

The Company makes annual contribu�on to the Gratuity Fund Trust which is maintained by LIC of India, a defined benefit plan for qualifying employees.

The Scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at re�rement, death while in employment or on termina�on of employment as per

provisions of  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The present value o�he defined benefit obliga�on and the related current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit method with actuarial

valua�on being carried out at the balance sheet date.

These disclosures are related to eMudhra Limited and only the summary of liability and assets are disclosed in the financials as per note 33.1 
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

(v) Major Category of Plan Assets as % of total Plan Assets

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

Insurer managed funds 100% 100%

(vi) Actuarial assump�ons

Discount rate 5.26% 5.81%

Salary growth 10.00% 8.00%

A�ri�on rate 30.00% 25.00%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 6.91% 7.44%

(vii) Amounts recognised in current period and previous five years

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

As at

March 31,2019

As at

March 31,2018

As at

March 31,2017

Present value of obliga�on 3,03,35,867    21658648 1,94,24,034    1,24,34,198    1,11,00,509         

Present value of plan assets 70,93,657        7000889 49,02,857        33,53,617        16,47,940            

Amount recognised in balance sheet (Liabil ity)/asset  (2,32,42,210)     (1,46,57,759)     (1,45,21,177)     (90,80,581)        (94,52,569)            

(viii) Expected contribu�on to the fund next year

As at

March 31,2022

As at

March 31,2021

Gratuity 20,00,000        12,00,000        

Notes:

1) The discount rate is based on the prevail ing market yields of Indian government securi�es as at the balance sheet date for the es�mated term of the obliga�on.

Other employee benefit plan: The l iabil ity for leave encashment and compensated balances as at year end is Rs. 9,070,821(2020: 4,932,591).

33.1 Summary of disclosures under accoun�ng standard 15

The following figures are taken from the stand alone audited financials of the respec�ve company

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

1 Gratuity

Long term provision (Refer Note 8)

eMudhra Limited 2,12,42,210        1,26,57,759    

eMudhra Consumer services Limited 1,44,230              -                      

eMudhra Technologies Limited -                        -                      

Total 2,13,86,440         1,26,57,759      

Short term provision (Refer Note 12)

eMudhra Limited 20,00,000           20,00,000        

eMudhra Consumer services Limited 5,00,000              -                      

eMudhra Technologies Limited 24,643                  -                      

Total 25,24,643             20,00,000         

2 Compensated absences

Long term provision (Refer Note 8)

eMudhra Limited 32,64,321             15,66,063         

eMudhra Consumer services Limited 2,03,476               

eMudhra Technologies Limited 62,516                  -                      

Total 35,30,313             15,66,063         

Short term provision (Refer Note 12)

eMudhra Limited 58,06,500             33,66,528         

eMudhra Consumer services Limited 1,32,636               

eMudhra Technologies Limited 2,024                     

Total 59,41,160             33,66,528         

2) Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on our expecta�on of the average long term rate of return expected on investment of the fund during the 

es�mated term of the obliga�ons.

3) The salary escala�on rate is the es�mate of future salary increase considered taking into account the infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant factors.
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

(Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

34 Related party disclosures

A. Disclosure related to subsidiary and associate companies

(A.1) Par�culars of subsidiary and associate companies :

Sl No Name of the company Address Rela�onship % of shares held

1 Smart Cra� Pvt Limited

#56, Sai Arcade, 

Deverabesenahall i , Bangalore, 

Karnataka.

Associate NA

2 Taarav PTE Ltd
1 Phil l ip Street, #03-

01S Singapore - 048692
Associate NA

3 eMudhra employees stock op�on trust

#56, Sai Arcade, 

Deverabesenahall i , Bangalore, 

Karnataka.

Associate NA

4 PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia

Ruko Pondasi, JI. Raya 

Founda�on No. 21 unit, H, Kayu 

Puith, Pulogadung, City of Adm. 

East Jakarta DKI Jakarta- 13210

Associate 29.5%

5 Bluesky Infotech

G-5, Arathi Apartments, No 150 

Habibullah Road, T. Nagar 

Chennai 600017

Associate NA

(A.2) Summary of transac�ons with subsidiary and associate companies

Sl No Summary of Transac�ons Subsidiary Company Associate Company

Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Sales of services/products -                                                    -                     22,61,20,350            16,66,40,467     

2 Purchase of products/services -                                                    -                      7,83,29,851              25,29,159           

3 Receipt of loan -                                                    -                      24,81,751                2,16,00,000      

4 Repayment of loan -                                                    -                      2,20,16,357             -                      

5 Commission paid -                                                    -                      1,94,62,661             1,32,29,565      

6 Receipt of deposits -                                                    -                      -                             1,00,000            

7 Investment in equity shares 13,85,85,189            -                       

(A.3) Detailed transac�on / balances of subsidiary and associate companies

Sl No Par�culars Balances

Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Sales of  products/Services

Bluesky Infotech 10,96,04,262                                  16,66,40,467    -                              -                       

PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia 11,65,16,088                                  -                      -                              -                       

2 Purchase of products/services

Smart Cra� Private Limited 10,103                                              2,16,080            -                              -                       

Bluesky Infotech 7,83,19,748                                     23,13,079          -                              -                       

3 Receipt of loan

Bluesky Infotech -                                                    2,16,00,000      -                              -                       

Taarav PTE Ltd 21,56,751                                        -                      63,74,548                  46,34,154           

eMudhhra employees stock op�on trust(net) 3,25,000                                          3,03,59,003              3,06,84,003        

4 Repayment of loan

Taarav PTE Ltd 4,16,357                                          -                      -                              -                       

Bluesky Infotech 2,16,00,000                                     -                      -                              -                       

5 Commission paid

Bluesky Infotech 1,94,62,661                                     1,32,29,565      

6 Receipt of deposits

Bluesky Infotech -                                                    1,00,000            

7 Investment in equity/preference shares

PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia 1,09,04,380                                     -                      1,09,04,380              

PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia[by eMudhra DMCC] 12,76,80,809                                  -                      12,76,80,809            

Transac�ons
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B. Disclosure related to director and key managerial personnel

(B.1) Par�culars of director and key managerial personnel :

Sl No Key managerial personnel Rela�onship

1 V. Srinivasan Chairman and director

2 Venu Madhava Whole�me director

3 Kaushik Srinivasan Related to chairman and director

4 Mythil i  Srinivasan Related to chairman and director

5 Arvind Srinivasan Related to chairman and director

6 Johnson Xavier Company secretary

7 Saji  K Louiz Chief financial officer

(B.2) Summary of transac�ons director and key managerial personnel

Sl No Summary Transac�ons Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Sale of shares -                                                    2,44,91,457      

2 Receipt of loan 2,35,35,000                                     1,55,08,543      

3 Repayment of loan 76,00,000                                        1,55,08,543      

4 Salary and allowances paid 2,39,03,304                                     2,08,74,610      

5 Preference dividend paid 25,79,999                                        25,79,999          

(B.3) Detailed transac�on / balances of subsidiary and associate companies

Transac�ons Balances

Sl No Par�culars Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Sale of shares

V. Srinivasan :

- Emudhra Consumer Service Limited -                                                    1,20,00,000      -                              -                       

- Emudhra Technologies Limited -                                                    1,24,91,457      -                              -                       

2 Receipt of loan:

V. Srinivasan 2,35,35,000                                     1,55,08,543      3,75,55,883              -                       

3 Repayment of loan:

V. Srinivasan 76,00,000                                        1,55,08,543      

4 Salary and allowances paid:

V Srinivasan 47,85,600                                        47,85,600          -                              -                       

Venu Madhava 43,63,729                                        39,49,758          -                              -                       

Kaushik Srinivasan 60,10,277                                        47,45,272          -                              -                       

Arvind Srinivasan 80,95,640                                        73,37,920          

Saji  K Louiz 39,47,377                                        35,45,264          -                              -                       

Johnson Xavier 14,86,281                                        12,96,396          -                              -                       

5 Preference dividend paid:

V. Srinivasan 16,06,719                                        16,06,719          

Mythil i  Srinivasan 3,89,312                                          3,89,312            

Kaushik Srinivasan 2,91,984                                          2,91,984            

Arvind Srinivasan 2,91,984                                          2,91,984            

Note:

1. The informa�on disclosed above is based on the names of the par�es as iden�fied by the management, which has been relied upon by the auditors.

4. The names of the related par�es with whom the transac�on has been carried out only has been reported.

2. Provision for leave encashment and group gratuity which is based on actuarial valua�on done on overall company basis is excluded while arriving at

salary and allowances

5. During the year, the KMP's have met various office expenses from credit cards and the same has been reimbursed directly to the credit card by the company.

Such reimbusements to the the credit cards are not included in the table above, which is amoun�ng to Rs.14,122,803 (2019:Rs. 14,270,917).

3.The Salary and allowances paid to key managerial persons includes leave encashment and incen�ve but doesn't includes PF contribu�on and other indirect benefits 
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eMudhra Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

35 Revenue from Opera�on:

Revenue from digital signature and accessories 67,24,69,902                              56,35,35,526            

Revenue from So�ware services and accessories (Including export sale) 64,25,04,457                              60,07,01,156            

1,31,49,74,359                           1,16,42,36,682        36 Micro small and medium enterprises

37 Leases

Par�culars As at March 31,2021

Less than one year                                       54,70,042 

One to five years                                   1,18,51,758 

                                  1,73,21,800 

38

39 Previous period figures

40 Contribu�on for corporate social responsibility expenses

Financial Year Net Profit Amount (Rs)

2017-18* 8,28,10,032                                 

2018-19* 10,08,88,850                              

2019-20* 11,17,62,070                              

Average Net profits 9,84,86,984                                 

2% of Avg.Net profit 19,69,740                                    

Total amount to be spent during financial year 2020-21 21,78,348                                    

Unspent amount -                                                 

* the above computa�on is bases on standalone financials of eMudhra Limited

The dues of  micro, small and medium enterprises, to which the company owes dues, or with which the company had transac�ons 

during the period has been disclosed in note 10 based on the informa�on available with the company, which has been relied upon by 

the auditors.

The companies lease assets consists only plant and machinary effec�ve from December 15, 2020. The company follows AS 19 leases 

to all the leasing contracts. The company has various  opera�ng leases/right to use for offices, residen�al premises and computers 

that are renewable on a periodic basis and cancellable at its op�on except for one which is non-cancellable in nature. Rental 

expenses for opera�ng lease/right to use recognised in the statement of profit and loss account amoun�ng to 

Rs.39,125,862[2020:28,932,334].The details of the non-cancellable contractual liabili�es as at March 31,2021 on an undiscounted basis 

are as below: 

Prepaid income and expenses

During the year, the company has changed its acoun�ng policy with respect to recogni�on of prepaid expenses and revenue in the 

books of accounts.In line with this, the company has started booking expenses and revenue in the same financial year where the 

prepaid expenses/revenue is below Rs.1,000,000 irrespec�ve of the effec�ve period.

By adop�on of the above policy change, the company has recoganised addi�onal revenue of  Rs.11,319,853 during the repor�ng 

period. Similary, an addi�onal expense of Rs.2,925,892 was also charged to the statement of pro� and loss in the repor�ng period.

The previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to this year classifica�on.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

To the Members of eMudhra Limited 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of eMudhra Limited (“the Company”) which 
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of profit and loss, and the 
statement of cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial posi�on) of the Company as at 
March 31, 2021, and its profit, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under sec�on 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accoun-

tants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
             

Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa�on. The 
other informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Board’s Report including Annexures 
thereto, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connec�on with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other infor-

ma�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit. 

UDIN: 21239986AAAAAN4966

101



Responsibility of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

                                

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the prepara�on of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs (financial posi�on), financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the accoun�ng Standards specified 
under sec�on 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregu-

lari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate implementa�on and maintenance of accoun�ng 
policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa-

�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and 
presenta�on of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Compa-

ny’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless the Board of Directors either intends to liqui-
date the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. Those Board of 
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain profes-

sional skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

•  Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng 
a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal 
control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible 
for expressing our opinion on whether the company are adequate internal financial controls in place 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls. 
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• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue 
as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 
scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we iden�fy during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with rele-

vant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships 
and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applica-

ble, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016, issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of Companies Act, 2013 of India (the Act), we give in 
the “Annexure A” a statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order.

2) As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowl-
edge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examina�on of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified 
under Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e. On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on 31st March, 2021 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 
2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.
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f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the com-

pany and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure B”

g. With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on 
and according to the explana�ons given to us: 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its financial 
statements – Refer Note no.22 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there 
were any material foreseeable losses; and 

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and 
Protec�on Fund by the Company.

 

 

Place: Bangalore 

 

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates 

Date: 21-05-2021 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registra�on No: 001997S 

  

 

 

  

 Sumith Rathi 

 Partner 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Membership No: 239986 

Sd:/-
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ANNEXURE  "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and Regulatory requirement" of 
our report of even date to the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31st March, 
2021.

i.  
a) The company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details 
and situa�on of fixed assets.

b) The company has a program of verifica�on to cover all the items of the fixed assets in a phased 
manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regards to the size of the company and the nature 
of its assets. According to the informa�on and explana�ons provided by the management no physical 
verifica�on of fixed assets is done during the year.

c) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the records examined by us and based 
on the examina�on of the deeds provided to us, we report that the �tle deeds, comprising all the 
immovable proper�es of land and buildings which are freehold, are in the name of the Company as at 
the Balance sheet date. In respect of the immovable proper�es of land and building that have been 
taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the standalone financial statements, the lease agree-

ment are in the name of the company.

ii. According to the informa�on and explana�ons provided by the management physical verifica�on of 
inventory during the year has been done.
 

iii. As informed to us the company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to the companies, 
firms, Limited liability partnerships or other par�es covered in the register maintained under sec�on 
189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the order are not applicable to 
the company and hence not commented upon.

iv. According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the company has complied with provi-
sions of Sec.185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the investment made. 

v. The company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the direc�ves issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sec�on 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Act and Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from 
the public are not applicable. 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sec�on 148(1) 
of the act, for any of the services rendered by the company.

vii. 
a. According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of 
books of accounts, and records, the company has been generally regular in deposi�ng undisputed 
statutory dues including as provident fund, Employee’s state insurance, Income tax, Goods and 
Service tax, cess Income tax and any other statutory dues with appropriate authori�es.

b. As per the informa�on and explana�on provided to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of the above were in arrears as at 31st March, 2021 for a period of more than six months from the 
date on when they become payable.
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c. According to the informa�on received and explana�on provided, there are no dues of tax, goods 
and service tax outstanding on account of any dispute, except for the following: 

 

viii. According to the records of the company examined by us and the informa�on/ explana�on 
provided to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of any dues to any financial ins�tu�on or 
to the bank as at the balance sheet.

ix. As per the explana�on provided to us, the company did not raise any money by way of ini�al public 
offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

x. As per the informa�on provided by the management, no material fraud by the company or on the 
company by its officers or employees has been no�ced or reported during the course of the audit.

xi. According to the explana�on and informa�on given by the management, the managerial remuner-

a�on has been paid or provided in accordance with the provisions of sec�on 197 read with Schedule 
V to the Companies Act, 2013.

xii. In our opinion, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 4(xii) of 
the order are not applicable to the company.

xiii According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and based on our examina�on of the 
records of the company, transac�ons with related par�es are in compliance with sec�on 177 and 188 
of the Act where applicable and details of such transac�ons have been disclosed in the financial 
statements as required by the applicable Accoun�ng Standards.

xiv. According to the informa�on and explana�ons provided by the management, the company has 
not made any preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly conver�ble 
debentures during the year under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xiii) of the order are 
not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

xv. As informed by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons 
with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xv) of the order 
are not applicable to the company and hence not commented upon.

Name of the 

Statute 

Nature of Dues Amount (Rs.) Period to which 

the amount 

relates 

Forum where 

dispute is 

pending 

Income Tax Appeal 3,22,90,170 Assessment 

year 2012-13 

High court 
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Place: Bangalore 

 

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates 

Date: 21-05-2021 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registra�on No: 001997S 

  

 

 

  

 Sumith Rathi 

 Partner 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Membership No: 239986 

Sd:/-

xvi. In our opinion the company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45 IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(xvi) of the order are not applica-

ble to the company and hence not commented upon.
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ANNEXURE "B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial controls over Financial statements under clause (i) of sub sec�on (3) 
of sec�on 143 of the Act.

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of eMudhra Limited (“the 

Company")as of March 31, 2021, in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the 
company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering 
the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Finan-

cial Controls over Financial repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(‘ICAI’ ). These responsibili�es include the design, implemena�on and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 
records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial 
repor�ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec�on of 143 (10) of the Act, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal 
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Stan-

dards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over 
financial repor�ng was established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all 
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng  included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 
tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment 
of risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial repor�ng.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng 

A company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reason-

able assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and prepara�on of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company’s 
internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that:

i. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transac�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the Company;

ii. Provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of 
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authoriza�ons of manage-

ment and directors of the Company; and 

iii. Provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi-
�on, use, or disposi�on of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial 
statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng  
 

Because of the inherent limita�ons of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due 
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 
financial control over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, 
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were 
opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2021, based on “the internal control over financial repor�ng 
criteria established by the company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng issued by the 
Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India".

 

Place: Bangalore 

 

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates 

Date: 21-05-2021 Chartered Accountants 

 Firm Registra�on No: 001997S 

  

 

 

  

 

Sumith Rathi 

 

Partner 

 

 

Membership No: 239986 

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Cash Flow Statement

Amount in INR
Year ended

March 31, 2021

Year ended

March 31, 2020

Cash flow from opera�ng ac�vi�es

Profit before tax 20,39,22,005       15,69,60,286       

Adjustments for :
Deprecia�on 6,18,33,807         6,51,51,511         

Capital Gain (26,99,965)           (29,83,412)           

Interest income (10,28,955)           (4,65,189)             

Interest expenses 60,25,148            64,84,948            

Opera�ng profit before working capital changes 26,80,52,040      22,51,48,144      

Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 33,70,437            (35,69,655)           

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables 4,06,89,102         (5,35,58,881)       

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances (1,27,89,406)       (4,78,93,576)       

Increase/ (decrease) in current liabili�es 4,82,91,836         2,79,21,182         

Cash generated from opera�ons 34,76,14,009      14,80,47,214      

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (5,07,70,000)       (3,73,68,208)       

Net cash from opera�ng ac�vi�es 29,68,44,009      11,06,79,006      

Cash flow from inves�ng ac�vi�es

Purchase of  tangible/intangible assets (18,05,79,229)     (22,46,62,447)     

Investment in units of Subsidiaries (1,55,16,030)       (1,59,47,960)       

Sales of Investments 3,76,76,900         2,44,91,457         

Sale of  tangible/intangible assets -                        4,14,90,078         

Capital gain on sale of Investment 26,99,965            29,83,412            

Interest received 10,28,955            4,65,189              

Net cash from / (used in) inves�ng ac�vi�es (15,46,89,441)     (17,11,80,271)     

Cash flow from financing ac�vi�es

Receipt (payment) of long term borrowing 3,72,24,955         7,39,45,458         

Shares issued during the year -                        -                        

Retained earnings brought on account of amalgama�on -                        -                        

Securi�es premium brought on account of amalgama�on -                        -                        

Redemp�on of preference share capital (7,50,00,000) -                               

Dividend Paid including dividend distribu�on tax (65,64,375)           (60,08,008)           

Proceeds (repayment) from short term borrowings (3,74,28,042)       (70,47,932)           

Interest  paid (60,25,148)           (64,84,948)           

Net cash from / (used in) financing ac�vi�es (8,77,92,610)                    5,44,04,570 

Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents 5,43,61,954         (60,96,696)           

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1,00,20,201         1,61,16,897         

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 6,43,82,155         1,00,20,201  

Cash and cash equivalents comprises of:
Cash on hand 1,62,205              2,61,510              

Balance with banks

In current accounts 95,14,950            97,58,691            

Deposit accounts 5,47,05,000 -                                 

Total 6,43,82,155                                               1,00,20,201         

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial 

statements

As per our report of even date

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Balance Sheet

Amount in INR

Par�culars Note no As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Shareholder's Funds

Share capital 3 43,68,98,460       51,18,98,460       
Reserves and surplus 4 52,51,65,576       38,25,10,946       
Non-current liabili�es
Long-term borrowings 5 22,45,27,349       18,73,02,377       

Other long-term liabili�es 6 1,79,82,917         1,10,25,860         

Deferred tax liabili�es (net) 7 88,57,134            49,24,134            

Long- term provisions 8 2,70,48,710         1,60,24,287         

Current liabili�es
651,37,60,99sgniworrob mret-trohS          12,81,01,198       

402,40,49,201selbayap edarT          3,53,44,519         

134,96,02,5111seitilibail tnerruc rehtO        11,75,17,019       

123,46,2521snoisivorp mret-trohS             35,66,063            

Total 1,51,78,91,258   1,39,82,14,863   

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Fixed assets

   Tangible assets 13        65,62,74,338        14,94,89,778 

   Intangible assets 14        24,59,13,686        28,81,58,064 

   Tangible assets under development          3,74,00,380        38,48,25,460 

   Intangible asset under development              75,76,086              59,45,745 

Non-current investments 15        19,20,73,255        21,42,34,125 

Long term loans and advances 16 6,74,27,549         6,76,58,287         

Current Assets

561,40,0371seirotnevnI             63,74,602            

553,09,57,3181selbaviecer edarT        17,82,79,457       

551,28,34,691stnelaviuqe hsac dna hsaC          1,00,20,201         

173,50,74,0102secnavda dna snaol mret-trohS        9,23,30,169         

819,34,5112stessa tnerruc rehtO             8,98,976              

Total 1,51,78,91,258   1,39,82,14,863   

Other notes to accounts 1 & 39

Summary of significant accoun�ng policies 2
Con�ngent liabili�es 22
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date a�ached

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss

Amount in INR

Par�culars
Note no

For the Year 
ended

March 31, 2021

For the Year 
ended

March 31, 2020

INCOME

538,96,63,90,1)53 eton refer( snoitarepo morf euneveR       1,03,03,75,794      

075,50,9332emocni rehtO               34,48,601              

504,57,57,90,1eunever latoT      1,03,38,24,395     

EXPENSES

301,70,03,6142sesnepxe gnitarepO          12,03,90,745         

453,91,50,8152edart-ni-kcots fo sesahcruP          23,68,14,536         

734,07,3362edart-ni-kcots fo seirotnevni ni segnahC               (35,69,655)             

921,02,80,3372esnepxe tifeneb eeyolpmE          26,75,13,841         

841,52,0682stsoc laicnaniF               64,84,948              

708,33,81,692esnepxe noitazitroma dna noitaicerpeD            6,51,51,511           

224,77,08,4103sesnepxe rehtO          18,40,78,183         

004,35,63,98esnepxE latoT          87,68,64,109         

Profit(loss) before tax 20,39,22,005         15,69,60,286         

Tax Expense:
000,07,70,5xat tnerruC            3,73,68,208           

000,33,93xat derrefeD               18,22,000              

Profit/(loss) a�er tax 14,92,19,005         11,77,70,078         

573,46,56serahs ecnereferp no diaP dnediviD               60,08,008              

Profit/(loss) for the year 14,26,54,630         11,17,62,070         

Earnings per equity share(Nominal value of Rs.5 per share) 31

31.2cisaB                         1.68                        

31.2detuliD                         1.68                        

1stnuocca ot seton rehtO
2seicilop gnitnuocca tnacifingis fo yrammuS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 

1. General Informa�on

eMudhra Limited is a public limited company engaged in providing various solu�ons and services like 
digital signatures, authen�ca�on solu�ons, paperless office solu�ons and other solu�ons around PKI 
technology. eMudhra is a licensed Cer�fying Authority under the Informa�on Technology Act,2000. 

Founded in 2008 from the seed of digital signatures, eMudhra has since grown to establish strong 
roots in solu�ons providing security to enterprises and end consumer for online transac�ons. 
eMudhra strives to stay relevant in the PKI and online security space by op�mizing a market-based 
approach to drive solu�ons that address our customers’ financial and statutory needs. eMudhra’s 
products include digital signature cer�ficates, authen�ca�on solu�ons, paperless office solu�ons, 
Cer�fying Authority solu�ons, solu�ons for securing data at rest and data in transit, solu�ons for 
Internet of Things(IoT), etc.

2. Summary of Significant Accoun�ng Policies
  

I. Basis of Prepara�on of Accounts

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the generally accepted accoun�ng 
principles in India under the historical cost conven�on on accrual basis, the exis�ng Accoun�ng 
Standards no�fied under the Companies Act, 2013 shall con�nue to apply. Consequently, these 
financial statements have been prepared to comply in all material aspects with the accoun�ng stan-

dards no�fied under Sec�on 211(3C) [Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2014, as amended] 
and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

II. Use of Es�mates

The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accoun�ng principles in 
India requires management to make es�mates, judgements and assump�ons that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabili�es and the disclosure of con�ngent liabili�es on the date of the financial 
statements. The applica�on of accoun�ng policies that require cri�cal accoun�ng policies that require 
cri�cal accoun�ng es�mates, judgements and the use of assump�ons in these financial statements 
and therefore actual results could differ from those es�mates. Any revision to accoun�ng es�mates is 
recognised prospec�vely in current and future periods.

The company has considered the possible effects that may arise from the pandemic rela�ng to 
COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial 
statements may differ from that es�mated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.
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III. Tangible Assets

Tangible assets are stated at acquisi�on cost, net of accumulated deprecia�on and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any, except in case of land. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of 
fixed asset are added to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the exis�ng 
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. The company capitalises all costs 
rela�ng to the acquisi�on, installa�on and construc�on of fixed assets, up to the date when the 
assets are ready for commercial use.

Items of fixed assets that have been re�red from ac�ve use and are held for disposal are stated at 
the lower of their net book value and net realizable value and are shown separately in the finan-

cial statements. Any expected loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, losses arising 
from the re�rement of, and gains or losses arising from disposal of fixed assets which are carried 
at cost are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Deprecia�on on addi�ons/ dele�ons to fixed assets is calculated on pro-rata basis from/upto the 
date of such addi�ons/ dele�ons. The Company provides deprecia�on on straight-line basis 
method at the rates specified under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. However, the 
leasehold improvements are depreciated at lower of useful life men�oned in schedule II of the 
above said Act or over the lease period.

IV Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisi�on cost, net of accumulated amor�za�on and accumulat-
ed impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amor�sed on straight-line basis over a period 
of 10 years, based on management es�mate. The amor�za�on period and the amor�za�on 
method are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

V. Investments

Long term investments are carried at cost and necessary provisions are made to recognize any 
decline, other than temporary, in the value of such investments.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value and provision is made to 
recognize any decline in the carrying value.

VI. Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost, computed on a FIFO basis and es�mated net realiz-

able value.
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VII. Revenue Recogni�on

The company uses  the following methods while recognizing revenue for any given period 

1. Percentage-of-comple�on method in accoun�ng for its fixed price assignments
2. Digital signature related revenue is accounted based on billing
3. Revenue from traded materials are accounted on the basis of delivery
4. The prepaid revenues are amor�sed in the same financial year, if the value is less than or equal to 
Rs.1,000,000

VIII. Other Income

Interest: Interest income is recognised on a �me propor�on basis taking into account the amount 
outstanding and the rate applicable.

IX. Leases

1. Opera�ng lease

a) The opera�ng lease rentals are expenses off with reference to  lease terms and other consider-

a�ons, if any

2. Finance lease

b) The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum lease rentals are capital-
ized as fixed assets with corresponding amount shown as lease liabili�es. The en�re amount with 
respect to the lease rentals are adjusted against the lease liabili�es.

X. Foreign Currency Transac�ons

Ini�al Recogni�on

On ini�al recogni�on, all foreign currency transac�ons are recorded by applying to the foreign curren-

cy amount the exchange rate between the repor�ng currency and the foreign currency at the date of 
the transac�on.

Subsequent Recogni�on

As at the repor�ng date, non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominat-
ed in a foreign currency is reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transac�on. All 
non-monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valua�on denominated in a foreign 
currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. 

116



All monetary assets and liabili�es in foreign currency are restated at the end of accoun�ng period. 
With respect to long-term foreign currency monetary items, from April 1, 2011 onwards, the Company 
has adopted the following policy:

- Foreign exchange difference on account of a depreciable asset, is adjusted in the cost of the depre-

ciable asset, which would be depreciated over the balance life of the asset. 

- In other cases, the foreign exchange difference is accumulated in a Foreign Currency Monetary Item 
Transla�on Difference Account, and amor�sed over the balance period of such long term asset/ 
liability. 

A monetary asset or liability is termed as a long-term foreign currency monetary item, if the asset or 
liability is expressed in a foreign currency and has a term of 12 months or more at the date of origina-

�on of the asset or liability.

Exchange differences on restatement of all other monetary items are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

XI. Employee Benefits

(a) Defined Contribu�on Plan
 

Contribu�on towards provident fund and pension scheme for employees is made to the regulatory 
authori�es which are recognised by the Income Tax Authori�es and administered through appropriate 
authori�es, where the Company has no further obliga�ons. Such benefits are classified as Defined 
Contribu�on Schemes as the Company does not carry any further obliga�ons, apart from the contribu-

�ons made on a monthly basis.
 

(b) Defined Benefit Plan
 

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible 
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump 
sum payment to vested employees at re�rement, death, incapacita�on or termina�on of employ-

ment, of an amount based on the respec�ve employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The 
Company’s liability is actuarially determined by an independent actuary (using the Projected Unit 
Credit method) at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the year in which they arise.

(c) Other Employee Benefits
     

Compensated Absences: Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or 
encashed within 12 months from the end of the year are treated as short term employee benefits. The 
obliga�on towards the same is measured at the expected cost of accumula�ng compensated absences 
as the addi�onal amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused en�tlement as at the year end.
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Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 
months from the end of the year are treated as other long term employee benefits. The Company’s 
liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each year. 
Actuarial losses/ gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which they 
arise.

XII. Borrowing Cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc-

�on of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substan�al period of �me to get 
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, un�l such �me as the assets 
are substan�ally ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

XIII. Current and Deferred Tax

Tax expense for the period, comprising current tax and deferred tax, are included in the determina�on 
of the net profit or loss for the period. Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to 
the tax authori�es in accordance with the taxa�on laws prevailing in the respec�ve jurisdic�ons.

Deferred tax is recognised for all the �ming differences, subject to the considera�on of prudence in 
respect of deferred tax assets. Deferred tax assets are recognised and carried forward only to the 
extent that there is a reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable income will be available 
against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are measured 
using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substan�vely enacted by the Balance Sheet 
date. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reassesses unrecognised deferred tax assets, if any.

Current tax assets and current tax liabili�es are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off the recognised amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le the asset and the liability on a net basis. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabili�es are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set 
off assets against liabili�es represen�ng current tax and where the deferred tax assets and the 
deferred tax liabili�es relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxa�on laws.

Minimum Alterna�ve Tax credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convinc-

ing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is 
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is wri�en down 
to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal 
income tax during the specified period.

XIV. Provisions and Con�ngent Liabili�es

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obliga�on as a result of a past event, it 
is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the 
obliga�on and there is a reliable es�mate of the amount of the obliga�on. Provisions are measured at 
the best es�mate of the expenditure required to se�le the present obliga�on at the Balance Sheet 
date and are not discounted to its present value.
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Con�ngent Liabili�es: Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed when there is a possible obliga�on 
arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Company or a present obliga�on that arises from past events where it is either not probable 
that an ou�low of resources will be required to se�le or a reliable es�mate of the amount 
cannot be made.

XV. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

In the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits 
with banks, other short term highly liquid investments with original maturi�es of three 
months or less.

XVI. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period a�ribut-

able to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the period. Earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s earnings per share is the 
net profit for the period a�er deduc�ng preference dividends and any a�ributable tax thereto 
for the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period 
and for all periods presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the 
conversion of poten�al equity shares that have changed the number of equity shares 
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources. For the purpose of calcula�ng 
diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period a�ributable to equity share-

holders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted 
for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares.

For Manohar Chowdhry & Associates

Firm Registra�on Number: 001997S
Chartered Accountant

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors   

of eMudhra Limited 

Sumith Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 239986

V Srinivasan

Chairman
DIN: 00640646

Venu Madhava

Director
DIN: 06748204

Saji K Louiz

Chief Financial Officer
Johnson Xavier

Company Secretary

Bangalore, May 21, 2021Bangalore, May 21, 2021

Sd:/- Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-

Sd:/-
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

(Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated)

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

As at

March 31,2019

3 Share capital

Authorised

12,30,00,000 (2020:12,30,00,000) equity shares of Rs.5 each 61,50,00,000           61,50,00,000                 61,50,00,000            

 2,50,00,000 (2020: 2,50,00,000)  redeemable preference shares of Rs.10 each             25,00,00,000                   25,00,00,000              25,00,00,000 

86,50,00,000           86,50,00,000                 86,50,00,000            

Issued

7,01,79,692 (2020:7,01,79,692) equity shares of Rs.5 each             35,08,98,460                   35,08,98,460              35,08,98,460 

86,00,000 (2020: 1,61,00,000) Preference shares of Rs.10 each                8,60,00,000                   16,10,00,000              16,10,00,000 

Subscribed & Paid - up

7,01,79,692 (2020:7,01,79,692) equity shares of Rs.5 each             35,08,98,460                   35,08,98,460              35,08,98,460 

86,00,000 (2020: 1,61,00,000) Preference shares of Rs.10 each                8,60,00,000                   16,10,00,000              16,10,00,000 

43,68,98,460           51,18,98,460                 51,18,98,460            

(a) Reconcilia�on of number of shares

Equity Shares:

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,01,79,692              35,08,98,460                 7,01,79,692                     35,08,98,460            

296,97,10,7raey eht fo dne eht ta ecnalaB               35,08,98,460 296,97,10,7                                      35,08,98,460            

Preference Shares:

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Balance at the beginning of the year 1,61,00,000              16,10,00,000                 1,61,00,000                     16,10,00,000            

Less: Redeemed during the year                   75,00,000                     7,50,00,000                                         -                                    -   

000,00,68raey eht fo dne eht ta ecnalaB                  8,60,00,000 000,00,16,1                                        16,10,00,000            

(b) Rights, preferences and restric�ons a�ached to shares
Equity shares

Preference shares

(d)Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in 

the company 

As at

March 31,2021
% 

As at

March 31,2020
% 

Equity Shares: 

V Srinivasan 2,79,73,964              40% 2,79,73,964                     41%

Lakshmi Kaushik 62,01,466                 9% 62,01,466                        9%

Arvind Srinivasan 66,36,515                 9% 66,36,515                        9%

eMudhra Employees Stock Op�on Trust 60,57,801                 9% 61,32,801                        9%

Taarav Pte Ltd 1,83,59,123              26% 1,83,59,123                     26%

Preference Shares:  

3i Infotech limited -                              0% 75,00,000                        47%

V Srinivasan 66,53,438                 77% 53,55,731                        33%

Mythili Srinivasan -                              0% 12,97,707                        8%

Lakshmi Kaushik 9,73,281                    11% -                                     0%

Aishwarya Arvind 9,73,281                    11% -                                     0%

Kaushik Srinivasan -                              0% 9,73,281                           6%

Arvind Srinivasan -                              0% 9,73,281                           6%

Equity shares : The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.5 per share. Each shareholder is  eligible for  one vote per share held. In the event of liquida�on, the 

equity share holders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the company a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts in propor�on to their share holding. 

86,00,000 (2020:1,61,00,000) preference share of Rs.10 each. These shares are 3% cumula�ve non conver�ble preference shares of Rs.10 each.During the year, the company has 

redeemed 75,00,000 preference shares issued to M/s 3i Infotech Limited at the rate Rs.10 per share.
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Amount in INR

sralucitraPon etoN
As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

4 Reserves and surplus

Capital redemp�on reserve

000,00,09,8ecnalab gninepO            8,90,00,000           

000,00,05,7raey eht gnirud derrefsnart :ddA -                                     

Balance as at the end of the year 16,40,00,000        8,90,00,000           

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss

649,01,53,92raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB          18,17,48,876         

036,45,62,41doirep/raey eht rof )ssoL( /tiforP          11,17,62,070         

)000,00,05,7(evreser noitpmeder latipac ot refsnarT -                                    

Balance as at the end of the year 36,11,65,576        29,35,10,946        

52,51,65,576        38,25,10,946        

5 Long-term borrowings

Secured term loans:

943,72,54,22knaB morF          18,73,02,377         

22,45,27,349        18,73,02,377        

Nature  of security and  terms of  repayment for secured  borrowings:

tnemyapeR fo smreTytiruces fo erutaN

During the year, our banker, Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, has sanc�oned addi�onal
loan under ECLGS scheme amoun�ng to Rs.55,800,000/- towards construc�on of

Digital Signature Campus building in KIADB IT Park, Devenahalli, Bangalore, out of which

en�re amount  has been u�lised �ll March 2021.

1. Primary Security:First and exclusive charge on all exis�ng and futur current

assets, movable assets, movable fixed assets, tangible and intangible assets of

the borrower

2. Collateral Security: Proposed memorandum of deposit of  �tle deeds of lease hold

property (leased for 99 years) KIADB land located at plot no 12-P1-A & 12-P1-B of

Bengaluru Industrial area in Sy No 95/P & 7 ( Block no 21, 22 & 24) of B K Palya village,

Jala Hobli, Bangalore North taluk, Bengaluru Urban Dist measuring land 3 acres standing

in the name of the company.Property presently under construc�on. 
3. Collateral Security: Residen�al flat in"Cedar grove Oasis" apartment, property

no.96, Katha no 1374/533/21,Sy.no.25/1, situated at Kaikondanahalli Village,Varthur

Village,Bangalore standing in the name of M/s.Cedar Grove Real Estate Private Limited.

4. Collateral Security: Vacant land situated at, property no.95(old no.15),New Katha no

1368/527/15,old Katha no.527, Sy.no.25/1,situated at Kaikondanahalli Village,Varthur

Village, Bangalore standing in the name of Mr.V.Srinvasan.

6 Other long-term liabili�es

 000,52,52               stisoped edarT 25,25,000              

Lease liabili�es[ refer note 37]            1,18,51,758 -                          

 951,60,63               ecnavda ni deviecer emocnI 85,00,860              

1,79,82,917           1,10,25,860           

7 Deferred tax liabili�es (net)

Deferred tax on account of:

 431,75,88                 noitaicerpeD 49,24,134              

88,57,134              49,24,134              

8 Long- term provisions

Provision for employee benefits:
(refer note 33)

012,24,21,2 ytiutarg rof noisivorP            1,26,57,759           

005,60,85secnesba detasnepmoc rof noisivorP               33,66,528              

2,70,48,710           1,60,24,287           

Term loan 1 (Rs.150,000,000): The

repayment started from June 2019 with a

monthly instalment of Rs.26,07,387 for a

period of 81 months.Company has made

a repayment of Rs.259,95,117 �ll March

2021 towards the principal.The unu�lised

amount lapsed is Rs.11,672

Term loan 2 (Rs.100,000,000): 

The repayment from June 2020 with a

monthly instalment of Rs.24,63,424 for a

period of 48 months. Company has made

a repayment of Rs.70,32,583 �ll March

2021 towards the principal.The unu�lised

amount lapsed is Rs.913,346.

Term loan 3(Rs.55,800,000): This facility

currently under moratorium and shall

start     the    repayment    from    December

2021 with a monthly instalment of

Rs.17,06,743 for a period of 48

months[including moratorium period]. 

Interest Rate: repo rate + Spread of 4.95%
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Amount in INR

sralucitraPon etoN
As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

9 Short-term borrowings

Unsecured

-sesirpretne detaicossA morF                           2,16,00,000           

Secured

From scheduled banks*

422,35,33,4naol latipac gnikroW            7,92,29,064           

239,91,37,4)5 eton refer(naol mret fo ytirutam tnerruC            2,72,72,135           

9,06,73,156           12,81,01,198        

10 Trade payables

Total  outstanding  dues of micro and small enterprises [ refer note no 36] 1,92,86,201           -                          

Total  outstanding  dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 1,01,18,003           3,53,44,519           

2,94,04,204           3,53,44,519           

11 Other current liabili�es

749,41,01sremotsuC  morf ecnavdA               16,32,914              

728,13,16srotiderc latipaC               70,26,374              

Income received in advance 1,19,91,700           1,36,33,689           

Statutory dues (Including GST,provident fund and tax deducted at source)            2,24,13,258 2,89,04,155           

 433,21,19               tisoped latroP CSD 1,03,10,767           

175,60,55,2elbayap stifeneb eeyolpmE            3,06,06,843           

240,07,45]73 eton refer [seitilibail esaeL               -                          

580,52,16,3)SDT fo ten( noisivorp xat emocnI            -                          

 766,30,34,3           snoitagilbo lautcartnoc sdrawot selbayap rehtO 2,54,02,277           

15,20,69,431        11,75,17,019        

12 Short-term provisions

Provision for employee benefits:

(refer note 33)

000,00,02ytiutarg rof noisivorP               20,00,000              

Provision for compensated absences 32,64,321              15,66,063              

52,64,321              35,66,063              

* The company has exisitng workign capital facility from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited with a limit of Rs.80,000,000 and has availed 

addi�onal facility from ICICI Bank Limited with a limit of Rs.38,000,000. These loans are repayable on demand.

 Nature of Security[Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited]:

1. Primary Security:  Secured against receivables and inventory of the company.

2. Collateral Security:  (a) Proposed memorandum of deposit of �tle deeds of lease hold property (leased for 99 years) KIADB land 

located at plot no 12-P1-A & 12-P1-B of Bengaluru Industrial area in Sy No 95/P & 7 ( Block no 21, 22 & 24) of B K Palya village, Jala 

Hobli, Bangalore North taluk, Bengaluru Urban Dist measuring land 3 acres standing in the name of the company.

(b) Residen�al flat in "Cedar grove Oasis" apartment, property no.96,Katha no 1374/533/21,Sy.no.25/1,situated at 

Kaikondanahalli Village,Varthur Village,Bangalore standing in the name of M/s.Cedar Grove Real Estate Private Limited.

(c)Vacant land situated at, property no.95(old no.15),New Katha no 1368/527/15,old Katha no.527, Sy.no.25/1,situated at 

Kaikondanahalli Village,Varthur Village,Bangalore standing in the name of Mr.V.Srinvasan.

 Nature of Security[ICICI Bank Limited]:

1. This facility is 100% secured on fixed deposit made with this bank amoun�ng to Rs.4,000,0000. 
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eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Amount in INR

sralucitraPon etoN As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

15 Non-current investments

Quoted instruments:- 

Investment In Mutual Fund:

001,32,6dnuf lautum nI tnemtsevnI                     15,00,000                  

(50,000 (2020: 15,00,000) units of Canara robeco protec�on oriented fund - regular 

growth plan at par value of Rs.10 each)

Unquoted equity/preference instruments:- 

Investments in subsidiary companies:

226,77,98,01detimiL uM arhduMe ni tnemtsevnI 226,77,75,41                        

(5,158,477 (2020:7,158,477) equity shares of face value of MUR10 each) 

Investment in eMudhra Technologies Ltd                1,30,08,543 1,30,08,543              

(15,04,782 (2020:15,04,782) equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each)

Investment in eMudhra Consumer Services Ltd                3,80,00,000 3,80,00,000              

(38,00,000 (2020:38,000,000) equity shares of face value of Rs.10 each)

Investment in eMudhra DMCC                    10,11,582 10,11,582                  

(51 (2020: 51) equity shares of face value of AED 1000 each)

Investment in eMudhra PTE Ltd                    65,43,020 65,43,020                  

(1,27,500 (2020:127,500) equity shares of face value of SGD 1 each)

Investment in eMudhra BV                    46,11,650 -                              

(51,000 (2020:NIL) equity shares of face value of EURO 1 each)

Investment in PT Emudhra Technologies Indonesia                1,09,04,380 -                              

(147,500 (2020:NIL) equity shares of face value of USD 1 each)

Investment in eMudhra INC Ltd                    83,93,358 83,93,358                  

(1,05,000 (2020: 105,000) equity shares of face value of USD 1 each)

19,20,73,255 521,43,24,12                        

16 Long term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

-secnavda latipaC                               16,630                        

Deposits:

737,43,60,2 stisoped ytiruceS 895,37,76,1                            

Tender deposits 9,67,000                    13,75,276                  

2,16,01,737 405,56,18,1                            

Other loans and advances

918,40,58)SDT fo ten( noisivorP xat emocnI                   1,14,28,957              

-secnavda rehtO                               7,41,298                    

85,04,819                  1,21,70,255              

Other non current assets

Others

Advances to Emudhra employees stock op�on trust 3,03,59,003              3,06,84,003              

Long term deposits with bank with maturity period more than 12 months [Refer 

note below]

                   69,61,990 66,38,525                  

3,73,20,993 825,22,37,3                            

Note: Rs.6,961,990 held as lien by banks against bank guarantees.

6,74,27,549 782,85,67,6                            

17 Inventories

Details of stock- in- trade

561,40,03eludom ytiruces erawdraH/nekot otpyrC 206,47,36                                    

30,04,165 206,47,36                                    

18 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good

From related par�es

Outstanding for a period exceeding  six months from the date they are  due for 

payment

- -                                                            

287,19,48srehtO                   -                              

From Unrelated par�es

Outstanding for a period exceeding  six months from the date they are  due for 

payment
2,16,14,014 220,95,03,3                            

955,48,47,01srehtO 534,02,25,41                        

13,75,90,355 754,97,28,71                        
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Amount in INR

Note no Par�culars As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 1,62,205                 2,61,510                 

Bank Balances :

   In fixed deposits ( refer below note) 5,47,05,000           -                          

In current accounts 95,14,950          97,58,691              

6,43,82,155           1,00,20,201           

20 Short-term loans and advances

Unsecured, considered good

Other advances 47,32,382              50,09,057              

Unbilled revenue 7,21,23,729           6,31,62,481           

Capital advances 1,15,51,211           -                          

Balances with  government authori�es 15,68,698              5,47,984                 

Prepaid expenses 1,47,29,351           2,36,10,647           

10,47,05,371         9,23,30,169           

21 Other current assets

Interest accrued on fixed deposit 15,43,918              8,98,976                 

15,43,918              8,98,976                

Note: Deposit of Rs.14,705,000 held as lien by banks against bank guarantees and another 

deposit of Rs.40,000,000 is held as lien by bank against overdra� facility

125



eMudhra Limited

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Amount in INR

sralucitraPon etoN
As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

22 Con�ngent liabili�es

Bank guarantees (secured against fixed deposits of Rs.21,666,990) 2,57,63,773           1,07,35,308           

071,09,22,3)woleb )a( eton refer(laeppA xat emocnI            3,22,90,170           

5,80,53,943           4,30,25,478           

Note:

(d) The proposed dividend for the financial year 2021 is  Rs.2,580,000 [2020:4,830,000]

(a)The company has filed writ pe��on (WP 52898/2019) which is pending with Honourable High Court of Karnataka

against Dy commissioner of Income Tax Circle2(1)(2), Bangalore against their Assessment Order for the AY 2012-13

to levy income tax under sec�on 143 r.w.s. 147 of Income tax act,1961.

(b) The company has 3 legal cases agasint the company in various courts in the country. In all these cases, we do

not forsee any financial implica�on.
(c) The company has filed one case against M/s Suvidhaa Infoserve Private Limited, which is for seeking

compensa�on to recover the losses suffered by the company on account of breach of terms of the agreement by the

defendant. The compensa�on sought in this case is Rs.50,00,00,000.
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Amount in INR

sralucitraPon etoN
For the Year ended

March 31, 2021

For the Year ended

March 31, 2020

23 Other income

Interest Income 10,28,955                  4,65,189                    

Other income 1,76,650                    29,83,412                  

Gain on redemp�on of shares/mutual funds 26,99,965                  -                              

Total 39,05,570                  34,48,601                  

24 Opera�ng expenses

Distributor commission 6,81,14,750              5,36,40,195              

Other direct opera�ng expenses 4,68,28,720              4,12,20,596              

Licence fee expenses 3,65,95,472              1,76,81,750              

Payment gateway charges 43,02,073                  35,12,466                  

Postage and courier charges 61,70,357                  40,18,168                  

Foreign exchange Loss 9,95,731                    3,17,571                    

16,30,07,103            12,03,90,745            

25 Purchases of stock-in-trade

Purchase of hardware's/So�ware 18,05,19,354            23,68,14,536            

18,05,19,354            23,68,14,536            

26 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

Finished Goods:

Opening stock:

Crypto token/hardware security module 63,74,602                  28,04,948                  

63,74,602                  28,04,948                  

Closing stock:

Crypto token/hardware security module 30,04,165                  63,74,602                  

 Closing stock 30,04,165                  63,74,602                  

Total 33,70,437                  (35,69,655)                

27 Employee benefit expense

862,70,89,92seeyolpme ot secnawolla dna yralaS             24,62,08,548            

103,56,69sdnuf eeyolpme sdrawot noitubirtnoC                   87,82,638                  

065,74,31,2sesnepxe eraflew ffatS               1,25,22,655              

Total 33,08,20,129            26,75,13,841            

28 Financial costs

841,52,06esnepxe tseretnI                   64,84,948                  

Total 60,25,148                  64,84,948                  

29 Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense

521,04,38,4stessa elbignatni no noitazitromA               5,23,74,633              

286,39,43,1stessa elbignat no noitaicerpeD               1,27,76,878              

Total 6,18,33,807              6,51,51,511              

30 Other expenses

682,66,47esnepxe ecnanetniam eciffO                   94,31,763                  

Electricity expense 71,25,279                  89,00,490                  

Business promo�on and adver�sement 2,46,22,479              2,27,63,552              

Miscellaneous expense 17,31,188                  17,84,266                  

Communica�on expenses 90,95,096                  94,84,932                  

Insurance expenses 21,25,341                  15,21,813                  

892,71,06sesnepxe ygolonhcet noitamrofnI                   34,13,266                  

147,16,89,2sesnepxe gnitcartnocbus dna lanoisseforP ,lageL               6,07,27,130              

Auditors' remunera�on:

    - Statutory audit fee 7,00,000 000,00,7                                        
    -Other services 2,10,000                    1,89,201                    

    -Other consultancy services 1,50,000                    

Membership charges 18,21,787                  6,90,042                    

Mee�ng and conference expenses -                              4,99,527                    

695,97,21yranoitats dna gnitnirP                   41,73,813                  

Fees rates and taxes 67,10,428                  12,83,088                  

Recruitment and training expenses 22,34,864                  10,60,110                  

Repair and maintenance 29,37,318                  36,25,150                  

Travelling, boarding and lodging expenses 23,01,551                  2,06,84,875              

Local conveyance 5,32,960                    21,73,401                  

Rent 3,91,25,862              2,89,32,334              

843,87,12)04 oN etoN refeR( sesnepxe ytilibisnopser laicos etaroproc rof noitubirtnoC                   18,89,429                  

Total 14,80,77,422            18,40,78,183            
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Note no Par�culars

For the Year ended

March 31, 2021

For the Year ended

March 31, 2020

31 Earnings per share

Basic:

500,91,29,41Axat retfa tiforP 870,07,77,11                                

Weighted average number of shares outstanding B 7,01,79,692 296,97,10,7                 

86.131.2B/ASPE  cisaB

Diluted

500,91,29,41Axat retfa tiforP 870,07,77,11                                

Weighted average number of shares outstanding B 7,01,79,692 296,97,10,7                                     

31.2B/ASPE  detuliD 86.1                                                               

32 Foreign Exchange Earnings / Expenses

Foreign exchange earned

Royalty,know-how,professional and consulta�on fee 3,59,21,683 923,66,29,3                                     

Foreign exchange used

Royalty,know-how,professional and consulta�on fee 98,54,102 690,43,22,1                                        
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33 Disclosures under accoun�ng standard 15

a) Post Re�rement Benefit- Defined Contribu�on Plans

b) Post Re�rement Benefit- Defined Benefit Plan 

 For the Year ended

March 31, 2021 

 For the Year ended

March 31, 2020 

(i)  Present Value of Defined Benefit Obliga�on - Gratuity

846,85,61,2raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB 430,42,49,1                                                   

128,98,34tsoc ecivres tnerruC 345,96,25                                                         

380,32,21tsoc tseretnI 490,28,31                                                         

429,87,24ssol/)niag( lairautcA )290,12,14(                                                        

)906,41,21(diap stifeneB )139,59,2(                                                         

768,53,30,3raey /doirep eht fo dne eht ta ecnalaB 846,85,61,2                                                   

(ii) Fair value of Plan Assets

988,00,07raey eht fo gninnigeb eht ta ecnalaB 758,20,94                                                         

879,70,5stessa nalp no nruter detcepxE 368,04,4                                                             

141,86,8noitubirtnoC                                    22,46,553                        

)247,86()ssol(/niag lairautcA                                      (2,93,453)                         

)906,41,21(diap stifeneB )139,59,2(                                                         

756,39,07raey eht fo dne eht ta ecnalaB 988,00,07                                                         

(iii) Assets and liabili�es recognised in the Balance Sheet

768,53,30,3noitagilbo tifeneb denifed fo eulav tneserP 846,85,61,2                                                   

756,39,07stessa nalp fo eulav tneserP 988,00,07                                                         

Amount recognised as assets/(liability) (2,32,42,210)                            (1,46,57,759)                   

Recognised under:

)012,24,21,2()8 etoN refeR( noisivorp mret gnoL )957,75,62,1(                                                 

)000,00,02()21 etoN refeR( noisivorp mret trohS )000,00,02(                                                       

Total (2,32,42,210)                            (1,46,57,759)                   

(iv) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

128,98,34tsoc ecivres tnerruC 345,96,25                                                         

380,32,21tsoc tseretnI 490,28,31                                                         

)879,70,5(stessa nalp nruter detcepxE )368,04,4(                                                           

566,74,34ssol/)niag( lairautcA )046,72,83(                                                        

Total expenses 94,52,591                                 23,83,134                        

The Company has recognised an amount of Rs.92,98,744 (2020: Rs. 80,72,561) as expenses under the defined contribu�on plans in the

Statement of  Profit and Loss in respect of contribu�on to Provident Fund for the year ended March 31, 2021.

The Company makes provision for gratuity based on actuarial valua�on done on projected unit credit method at each balance sheet

date.

The Company makes annual contribu�on to the Gratuity Fund Trust which is maintained by LIC of India, a defined benefit plan for

qualifying employees. The Scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at re�rement, death while in employment or

on termina�on of employment as per provisions of  Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The present value of the defined benefit obliga�on and the related current service cost are measured using the projected unit credit

method with actuarial valua�on being carried out at the balance sheet date.
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(v) Major Category of Plan Assets as % of total Plan Assets

As at

March 31,2021

As at

March 31,2020

%001%001sdnuf deganam rerusnI

(vi) Actuarial assump�ons

%18.5%62.5etar tnuocsiD

%00.8%00.01htworg yralaS

%00.52%00.03etar noitirttA

%44.7%19.6stessa nalp no nruter fo etar detcepxE

(vii) Amounts recognised in current period and previous five years

As at March 

31, 2021

As at March 

31, 2020

As at March 

31, 2019

 As at March 

31, 2018

 As at March 

31, 2017

Present value of obliga�on 3,03,35,867       2,16,58,648       1,94,24,034    1,24,34,198   1,11,00,509   

Present value of plan assets 70,93,657          70,00,889          49,02,857        33,53,617      16,47,940      

Amount recognised in balance sheet (Liability)/asset  

(2,32,42,210)      (1,46,57,759)      (1,45,21,177)   (90,80,581)     (94,52,569)     

(viii) Expected contribu�on to the fund next year

As at March 

31, 2022

As at March 

31, 2021

000,00,02ytiutarG           20,00,000          

Notes:

1) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securi�es as at the balance sheet date for the es�mated term of the obliga�on.

2) Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on our expecta�on of the average long term rate of return expected on investment of the fund during the es�mated term of

the obliga�ons.

3) The salary escala�on rate is the es�mate of future salary increase considered taking into account the infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other relevant factors.
Other employee benefit plan:  The liability for leave encashment and compensated balances as at year end is Rs.90,70,821 (2020: Rs. 49,32,591).
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34 Related party disclosures

A. Disclosure related to subsidiary and associate companies

(A.1) Par�culars of subsidiary and associate companies :

Sl No Name of the company Address Rela�onship % of shares held

1 eMudhra (MU) Limited
10, Frere Felix de Valois Steet, Port 

Louis, Mauri�us.
Subsidiary 100.0%

2 eMudhra Technologies Limited
#56, Sai Arcade, Deverabesenahalli, 

Bangalore, Karnataka.
Subsidiary 51.0%

3 eMudhra Consumer Service Limited
#56, Sai Arcade, Deverabesenahalli, 

Bangalore, Karnataka.
Subsidiary 76.0%

4 eMudhra employees stock op�on trust
#56, Sai Arcade, Deverabesenahalli, 

Bangalore, Karnataka.
Associate NA

5 eMudhra B V

Wilhelmina Van Pruisenwg

000104

2595AN S-Gravenhague

Subsidiary 51.0%

6 PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia

Ruko Pondasi, JI. Raya Founda�on No. 

21 unit, H, Kayu Puith, Pulogadung, 

City of Adm. East Jakarta DKI Jakarta- 

13210

Associate 29.5%

7 eMudhra DMCC
No.3006, One Lake Plaza, Cluster T, JLT 

Po Box no - 32620, Dubai, UAE
Subsidiary 51.0%

8 eMudhra INC
, Street 202, Somerset , New Jersy - 

088734413, USA
Subsidiary 51.0%

9 eMudhra PTE Ltd
1 Phillip Street,#03-01S Singapore- 

048692
Subsidiary 51.0%

10 Smart Cra� Pvt Limited
#56, Sai Arcade, Deverabesenahalli, 

Bangalore, Karnataka.
Associate NA

11 Bluesky Infotech

G-5, Arathi Apartments, No 150 

Habibullah Road, T. Nagar Chennai 

600017

Associate NA

(A.2) Summary of transac�ons with subsidiary and associate companies

Sl No Summary of Transac�ons Subsidiary Company Associate Company

Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Purchase of Fixed Assets -                                                               4,14,90,078         -                                -                          

2 Expenses incurred on behalf and reimbursed -                                                               10,05,753            -                                -                          

3 Sales of  products/Services 3,24,14,742                                               1,12,04,028         10,96,04,262              16,73,15,267        

4 Sales of so�ware Licencing fees 83,80,065                                                   -                        -                                -                          

5 Purchase of products/services 1,14,10,000                                               13,60,15,848      7,83,29,851                29,59,859              

6 Purchase of so�ware Licencing fees 3,65,95,471                                               1,76,81,750         -                                -                          

7 Receipt of loan -                                                               -                        3,25,000                      2,16,00,000          

8 Repayment of loan -                                                               4,79,00,000         -                                -                          

9 Investment in equity shares 1,55,16,030                                               1,59,47,960         -                                -                          

10 Divestment in equity shares 3,93,76,865                                               -                        -                                -                          

11 Commission paid -                                                               -                        1,94,62,661                1,32,29,565          

12 Receipt of deposits -                                                               -                        -                                1,00,000.00          

(A.3) Detailed transac�on / balances of subsidiary and associate companies

Sl No Par�culars Transac�ons Balances

Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Purchase of Fixed Assets

Emudhra Consumer Service Limited -                                                               4,14,90,078         

2 Expenses incurred on behalf and reimbursed

Emudhra Technologies Limited -                                                               3,96,644              -                          

Emudhra Consumer Service Limited -                                                               6,09,109              -                          

3 Sales of  products/Services

Bluesky Infotech 10,96,04,262                                             16,66,40,467      -                                -                          

eMudhra DMCC 74,14,742                                                   62,04,028            7,32,500                      -                          

eMudhra Consumer Service Limited 2,50,00,000                                               -                        -                                

Smart Cra� Private Limited -                                                               6,74,800              -                                -                          

eMudhra Technologies Limited -                                                               50,00,000            
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4 Sales of so�ware Licencing fees

eMudhra DMCC 48,37,362                                              -                      48,37,362.08           -                       

eMudhra Consumer Service Limited 5,94,300                                                -                      -                             -                       

eMudhra Technologies Limited 29,48,403                                              -                      -                             

5 Purchase of products/services

eMudhra Technologies Limited 1,14,10,000                                          8,12,60,000      -                       

Smart Cra� Private Limited 10,103                                                   2,16,080            -                       

Bluesky Infotech 7,83,19,748                                          27,43,779          -                             -                       

eMudhra Consumer Service Limited -                                                          5,47,55,848      

6 Purchase of so�ware Licencing fees

Emudhra Consumer Service Limited 3,65,95,471                                          1,76,81,750      -                             -                       

7 Receipt of loan

Bluesky Infotech -                                                          2,16,00,000      -                             2,16,00,000        

eMudhhra employees stock op�on trust(net) 3,25,000                                                3,03,59,003             3,06,84,003        

8 Repayment of loan

Emudhra Consumer Service Limited -                                                          4,79,00,000      -                             -                       

9 Investment in equity shares

eMudhra DMCC -                                                          10,11,582          10,11,582                 10,11,582           

eMudhra INC -                                                          83,93,358          83,93,358                 83,93,358           

eMudhra PTE Limited -                                                          65,43,020          65,43,020                 65,43,020           

eMudhra B V 46,11,650                                              -                      46,11,650                 -                       

PT eMudhra Technologies Indonesia 1,09,04,380                                          -                      1,09,04,380             -                       

10 Divestment in equity shares

eMudhra MU Ltd[on account of capital reduc�on] 3,93,76,865                                          -                      -                             -                       

[Including premium of Rs.2,576,865]

11 Commission paid

Bluesky Infotech 1,94,62,661                                          1,32,29,565      -                             -                       

12 Receipt of deposits

Bluesky Infotech -                                                          1,00,000            -                             -                       

B. Disclosure related to director and key managerial personnel

(B.1) Par�culars of director and key managerial personnel :

Sl No Key managerial personnel Rela�onship

1 V. Srinivasan Chairman and director

2 Venu Madhava Whole�me director

3 Kaushik Srinivasan Related to chairman and director

4 Mythil i  Srinivasan Related to chairman and director

5 Arvind Srinivasan Related to chairman and director

6 Johnson Xavier Company secretary

7 Saji  K Louiz Chief financial officer

(B.2) Summary of transac�ons of director and key managerial personnel

Sl No Summary Transac�ons Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Sale of shares -                                                          2,44,91,457      

2 Receipt of loan -                                                          1,55,08,543      

3 Repayment of loan -                                                          1,55,08,543      

4 Salary and allowances paid 1,58,07,664                                          1,35,36,690      

5 Preference dividend paid 25,80,000                                              25,79,999          

Related party disclosures

(A.3) Detailed transac�on / balances of subsidiary and associate companies

34.
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(B.3) Detailed transac�on / balances of subsidiary and associate companies

Transac�ons Balances

Sl No Par�culars Mar-21 Mar-20 Mar-21 Mar-20

1 Sale of shares

V. Srinivasan : -                                                          

- Emudhra Consumer Service Limited -                                                          1,20,00,000      -                             -                       

- Emudhra Technologies Limited -                                                          1,24,91,457      -                             -                       

2 Receipt of loan

V. Srinivasan -                                                          1,55,08,543      -                             -                       

3 Repayment of loan

V. Srinivasan -                                                          1,55,08,543      

4 Salary and allowances paid

Venu Madhava 43,63,729                                              39,49,758          -                             -                       

Kaushik Srinivasan 60,10,277                                              47,45,272          -                             -                       

Saji  K Louiz 39,47,377                                              35,45,264          -                             -                       

Johnson Xavier 14,86,281                                              12,96,396          -                             -                       

5 Preference dividend paid

V. Srinivasan 16,06,719                                              16,06,719          

Mythil i  Srinivasan 3,89,312                                                3,89,312            

Kaushik Srinivasan 2,91,984                                                2,91,984            

Arvind Srinivasan 2,91,984                                                2,91,984            

Note:

4. The names of the related par�es with whom the transac�on has been carried out only has been reported.

1. The informa�on disclosed above is based on the names of the par�es as iden�fied by the management, which has been relied upon by the auditors.

2.  Provision for leave encashment and group gratuity which is based on actuarial valua�on done on overall  company basis is excluded while arriving 

at salary and allowances

3.The Salary and allowances paid to key managerial persons includes leave encashment and incen�ve but doesn't includes PF contribu�on and other 

indirect benefits

5. During the year, the KMP's have met various office expenses from credit cards and the same has been reimbursed directly to the credit card by the 

company. Such reimbursements to the the credit cards are not included in the table above, which is amoun�ng to Rs.9,284,227 (2020:Rs.14,270,917) .

Related party disclosures34.
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35 Revenue from Opera�on:

For the Year ended

March 31, 2021

For the Year ended

March 31, 2020

Revenue from digital signature and accessories 67,24,69,902                     56,35,35,526                     

Revenue from So�ware services and accessories (Including export sale) 42,11,99,933                     46,68,40,268                     

1,09,36,69,835                 1,03,03,75,794                 

36 Micro small and medium enterprises

37 Leases

Par�culars As at March 31,2021

Less than one year                             54,70,042 

One to five years                          1,18,51,758 

                         1,73,21,800 

38 Prepaid income and expenses

39 Previous period figures

40 Contribu�on for corporate social responsibility expenses

Financial Year Net Profit Amount (Rs)

2017-18 8,28,10,032                       

2018-19 10,08,88,850                     

2019-20 11,17,62,070                     

Average Net profits 9,84,86,984                       

2% of Avg.Net profit 19,69,740                           

Total amount to be spent during financial year 2020-21 19,69,740                           

Actual Amount spent during financial year 2020-21 21,78,348                           

Unspent amount -                                        

The dues of micro, small and medium enterprises, to which the company owes dues, or with which the company had transac�ons

during the period has been disclosed in note 10 based on the informa�on available with the company, which has been relied upon

by the auditors.

The companies lease assets consists only plant and machinery effec�ve from December 15, 2020. The company follows AS 19 leases

to all the leasing contracts. The company has various opera�ng leases/right to use for offices, residen�al premises and computers

that are renewable on a periodic basis and cancellable at its op�on except for one which is non-cancellable in nature. Rental

expenses for opera�ng lease/right to use recognised in the statement of profit and loss account amoun�ng to

Rs.39,125,862[2020:28,932,334].The details of the non-cancellable contractual liabili�es as at March 31,2021 on an undiscounted basis

are as below:

During the year, the company has changed its accoun�ng policy with respect to recogni�on of prepaid expenses and revenue in the

books of accounts.In line with this, the company has started booking expenses and revenue in the same financial year where the

prepaid expenses/revenue is below Rs.1,000,000 irrespec�ve of the effec�ve period.

By adop�on of the above policy change, the company has recognised addi�onal revenue of Rs.11,319,853 during the repor�ng

period. Similarly, an addi�onal expenses of Rs.2,925,892 was also charged to the statement of profit and loss in the repor�ng period.

The previous year figures have been reclassified to conform to this year classifica�on.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
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